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Name of Registrant as specified in its charterGRAND PLAZA HOTEL
CORPORATION

City of Pasay, Philippines

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

SEC Identification Number 166878

BIR Tax Identification Code 000-460-602-000

10/F e Heritage Hotel Manila, Roxas Blvd. cor. EDSA Ext., Pasay City 1300

Address of principal office _ Postal Code
(632) 854-8838 Fax : (632) 854-8825

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

16 May 2016, 11:30 a.m., The Heritage Ballroom of The Heritage Hotel Manila

located at the Ground Floor, The Heritage Hotel Manila, Roxas Blvd. cor. EDSA
Extension, Pasay City, Philippines

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

22 April 2016 date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders

In case of Proxy Solicitations: Not applicable

Name of Person Filing the
Statement/Solicitor: Not applicable

Address and Telephone
No.: Not applicable
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Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Section 4 and § of
the Revised Securities Act (information on number of shares and amount of debt is
applicable only to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding
Or Amount of Debt Outstanding

Common Stock 87,318,270
(inclusive of 33,600,901 treasury shares)

Are any or all of Registrant’s security listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes x No

If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed
therein:

Stock Exchange : Philippine Stock Exchange
Securitics : Common Shares
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS® MEETING

To All Stockholders:

Notice is hereby given that the annual stockholders’ meeting of Grand Plaza Hotel
Corporation (“Company”) will be held on 16 May 2016, Monday, at 11:30 a.m., at the
HeritageBallroom of The Heritage Hotel Manila, located at the Ground Floor, The Heritage
Hotel Manila, Roxas Blvd. cor. EDSA Extension, Pasay City, Philippines.
The agenda for the meeting are as follows:

l. Certification of quorum.

2. Presentation of the Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2015.

3 Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders’ Meeting of 15 May 2015.

4, Ratification of all acts and proceedings of the Board of Directors, acting
within the scope of their delegated authority, during the year 2015-2016.

5. Election of the Board of Directors, including the two (2) Independent
Directors.

6. Election of the independent auditor and the authority of the Directors to fix the

independent auditors’ remuneration.

7. Remuneration/ per diemof the Directors.

8. Consideration of such other business as may properly come before the
meeting.

9. Adjournment.

Minutes of the various mectings of the Corporation's Board of Directors and of the
stockholders (including those held during the year 2015 to present date)will be available for
inspection during office hours (9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.) on business days at the office of the
Corporate Secretary at the 12 Floor, Net One Center Building, 26" Street corner 3™ Avenue,

Crescent Park West, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig, Metro Manila, from 22 April 2016 up to
13 May 2016.

All proxies must be in the hands of the Corporate Secretary for validation before 11:00 a.m.
of 16 May 2016. Proxies may be submitted to the office of the Corporate Secretary at the
address indicated above during business days and at office hours on or before 5:00 pm.of 15



May 2016. The Corporate Secretary shall receive proxies submitted on the day of the
meeting at the entrance of the ballroom of the Heritage Hotel Manila. All proxies submitted
after 11:00 a.m. of 16 May 2016 shall not be honored and shall not be deemed as a valid
proxy for the 16 May 2016 annual stockholders’ meeting. For your convenience in
registering your attendance, please have available some form of identification such as
driver’s license, community tax certificate, passport, etc.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on 18 April 2016 are entitled to notice of,
and to vote at, the annual stockholders’ meeting.

Taguig City, Philippines. 22 April 2016.

FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Maria Christina J. Macasaet-Acaban
Corporate Sccretary



PART L. INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders

l. Date 16 May 2016
Time 11:30 am.
Place : Heritage Ballroom, of The Heritage Hotel Manila, located at

theGroundFloor, The Heritage Hotel Manila, Roxas Blvd, cor. EDSA Extension,
Pasay City, Philippines

Complete mailing address of Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation (the “Company™):
10F, The Heritage Hotel Manila, Roxas Blvd. cor. EDSA Extension, Pasay City

The approximate date on which copies of the Information Statement are to be sent or given to
security holders is on 22 April 2016.

WE ARE NOT ASKING FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO
SEND US A PROXY.

Item 2. Dissenter’s Right of Appraisal

There are no matters or proposed corporate actions included in the agenda of the meeting
which may give rise to a possible exercise by security holders of their appraisal rights.

As a rule, in the instances mentioned under Section 6.1.6 of the Company’s Revised Manual
on Corporate Governance (based on Section 82 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines),
the stockholders of the Company have the right of appraisal provided that the procedure and
the requirements of Title X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, governing the
exercise of the right is complied with and/or followed. The instances when the right of
appraisal may be exercised by dissenting stockholders of the Company are, as follows:

1. An amendment to the articles of incorporation that has the effect of (a) changing or
restricting the rights of shareholders or of authorizing preferences over those of

outstanding shares, or (b)changing the term of corporate cxistence:

Investment of corporate funds in another corporation or other business purposes;

Mergers or consolidations; and

Sale, encumbrance or other dispositions of all or substantially all of the corporate
property or assets.

ad bJ
.

&

Pleasc note that a stockholder must have voted against the above-mentioned corporate actions
in order to avail of the appraisal right.




Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

Except for the election of the directors of the Company, the agenda for the annual
stockholders’ meeting does not include any matter to be acted upon in which the following

persons may have any substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings or
otherwise:

l. The directors or officers of the Company who acted as such director or officer during
the last fiscal year;

2. The nominees for directors of the Company; and
3. Any association of the foregoing persons.

The Company has no knowledge/or information on whether a director or a security holder of
the Company intends to oppose any action to be taken by the Company during the meeting.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof,

1. As of 31 March 2016, the Company has 53,717,369 common shares outstanding', all
of which are entitled to vote. The Company has 33,600,901 treasury shares.

2. The record date with respect to this Information Statement and for the annual
stockholders’ meeting is 18 April 2016.

3. With respect to the election of the seven (7) directors, each stockholder may vote such
number of shares for as many as seven (7) directors he may choose to elect from the
list of nominees, or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many
votes as the number of his shares multiplied by seven (7) shall equal, or he may
distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall see fit,
provided that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of
shares owned by him as shown in the books of the Company multiplied by seven (7).
Out of the seven (7) directors to be elected. two (2) seats shall be allocated for the
position of the independent directors. Only the candidates for independent directors
selected by the Nomination Committee are eligible to be elected as independent
director. No other nominations for independent director shall be accepted during the

annual stockholders® meeting. Please refer to the discussion under “Directors and
Executive Officers of the Company™.

' This amount excludes Treasury Shares, which are not considered outstanding shares. As at 31 March 2016,
46,748,848 shares are owned by foreign shareholders and this is 87.03% of total issued shares.



Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management

The following entities are directly or indirectly the beneficial owners of more than 5% of the
Company’s voting shares (common), as of 31 March 2016.

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners of More than 5%

Name of | Citizenship No. of Percentage of*
Title of | Name and Address Beneficial Shares Shareholding
Class of Record Owner, Owner and Held (inclusive of
and Relationship Relationship treasury
with Issuer with Record shares)
Owner
Common | The Philippine Fund | Please refer to Bermuda | 28,655,932 33.43%
Limited (“TPFL") footnote two
Milner House, 18 below?
Parliament Strect,
Hamilton, Bermuda;
shareholder of issuer
Common | Zatrio Pte Ltd Please referto | Singapore | 17,727.149 20.68%
36 Robinson Road footnote three
04-01 City House below’
Singapore 068877
shareholder of issuer

Traditionally, the shares held by TPFL and Zatrio Pte Ltd
Chairman and President,orthe Compan

- are voted bythe Company's
y's Chief Financial Officer and Compliance Officer,

Mr. Yam KitSung, or in their absence, the Chairman of thestockholdersmeeting, by virtue of
a proxy validly issued for the scheduled annual stockholders’ meeting

The Philippine Fund Limited is owned by:

} Zatrio Pie Ltd is wholly owned with ordin

Shareholder's Name
Hong Leong Hotels Pte. Ltd.

P.O. Box 309 Grand Cayman

Class of Shares Owned

British West Indies, Cayman Islands

Pacific Far East (PFE) Holdings Corp. (formerly

Istethmar International Corporation)
Suite 2705-09, 27FIr, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

Robina Manila Hotel Limited

8/F BangkokBankBuilding

28 Des Voeux Road, Central Hong Kong

address at 36 Robinson Road, #04-01 City

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

% Held

60%

20%

ary shares of stock by Republic Hotels & Resorts [imited. with
House, Singapore 068877.




Security Ownership of Management

The following table shows the shareholdings beneficially held by the directors and officers of
the Company as of 31 March 2016:

Shares Beneficially Held By Officers

Title of Class Name of Amount and Nature of | Citizenship Percent of
Beneficial Owner | beneficial ownership class
Common shares | Yam Kit Sung 2,998 shares (direct) | Singaporean | Less than 1% |
Common shares | Eddie Yeo Ban 1 share (direct) Malaysian Less than 1%
Heng
(“Eddie Yeo™)
Common shares | Arlene de Guzman 1,000 shares (direct) Filipino Less than 1%
Total: 3,999 shares Less than 1%
L beneficial |
Shares Held by Current Directors
Title of Class Name of Amount and Nature of | Citizenship Percent of
Beneficial Owner beneficial ownership class
Common shares | Aloysius Lee 1 share (direct) Hong Kong | Less than 1%
Common shares | Bryan Cockrell 1 share (direct) American Less than 1%
Common shares | Angelito Imperio 1 share (direct) Filipino Less than 1%
Common shares | Eddie Yeo 1 share (direct) Malaysian Less than 1%
Common shares | Eddie C. T. Lau 1 share (direct) Chinese Less than 1%
Common shares | Mia Gentugaya 1 share (direct) Filipino Less than 1%
Common shares | Antonio Rufino 1 share (direct) Filipino Less than 1%
Total: 7 shares Less than 1%

Aggregate number of shares held by directors and officers of the Company is 4,006 shares.

The aggregate beneficial shareholdings of the directors and the officers of the Company is
less than 1% of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. The seven (7) shares of the
seven (7)current dircetors are held to qualify them to be elected as members of the Board of
Directors of the Company. Four (4) directors are nominees of TPFL and ZatrioPte Ltd and
two (2) are independent directors. Eachindependent director, Ms. Mia Gentugaya and
Angelito Imperio, directly owns one (1) share of the Company.

Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

There is no party holding any voting trust or any similar agreement for 5% or more of the
Company’s voting securities.

Change in Control

There are no arrangements, which may result in a change of control of the Company. No
change in control in the Company occurred since the beginning of the last fiscal year.




Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers of the Company

Meeting Attendance of the Company’s Board of Directors from 15 May 2015 to date:

Date of Name of Directors

Board of | Aloysius | Bryan | Angelito Mia Antonio Eddie Eddie
Directors’ Lee Cockrell | Imperio | Gentugaya | Rufino Lau Yeo
meetings
15 May Absent | Present | Present | Present Present Present | Present
2015 (1:00
p.m.)
20 July Present | Absent Present Present Present Present Present
2015
8 October | Absent | Present | Absent Present Present Present Present
2015
19 October | Present | Absent Present | Present Present Absent Present
2015
12 Present | Present | Prescnt Present Present Present Present
February
2016
26 Absent | Absent Present | Present Present Present | Present
February
2016
Total 3outof |3outof |Soutof |6outof6 |6Goutof |5outof |6outof

6 6 6 6 6 6

Percentage | 60% 60% 80% 100% 100% 80% 100%
of
Attendance
Meeting Attendance of the Company’s Audit Committee from 15 May 2015 to date:

Date of the Audit Name of Directors
Committee meetings Bryan Cockrell Mia Gentugaya Antonio Rufino
20 July 2015 Absent Present Present
19 October 2015 Present Present Present
12 February 2016 Present Present Present
Total 2 outof 3 4 out of 4 Joutof3
Percentage of 66.67% 100% 100%
Attendance

Meeting Attendance of the Company’s Nomination Committee from 15 May 2015 to date:

Date of the
Nomination's
Committee mecti ngs

Name of Directors




Aloysius Lee Eddie Bryan | Antonio Angelito
(first elected Lau Cockrell | Rufino Imperio
on 15 May (first
2015) elected on
15 May
2015)
26 February 2016 Absent Present Absent Present Present
21 March 2016 Present Absent Present Present Present
Total 1 outof 2 loutof2 [ loutof2 [2outof2 |2outof2
Percentage of
Attendance

The incumbent directors and executive officers and relevant data about them are listed below:

Name

Office Citizenship Family Age
Relation ">

Aloysius Lee Chairman & President Hong Kong No relation 67
Bryan Cockrell Director American No relation 68
Eddie C. T. Lau Director Chinese No relation 60
Angelito Imperio Independent Director Filipino No relation 76
Antonio Rufino Director Filipino No relation 69
Mia Gentugaya Independent Director Filipino No relation 64
Eddie Yeo Ban Heng Director / Vice- Malaysian No relation 68

President / Assistant

Compliance Officer /

General Manager of The

Heritage Hotel Manila /

Member The Heritage

Hotel Manila

Management Executive

Committee
Yam Kit Sung General Manager of the Singaporean No relation 45

Company / Chief

Finance Officer /

Compliance Officer /

Chief Audit Executive /

Member The Heritage

Hotel Manila

Management Executive

Committee
Maria Christina J. Corporate Secretary Filipino No relation 42
Macasaet-Acaban
Alain Charles J. Veloso | Assistant Corporate Filipino No relation 306

Secretary
Arlene De Guzman Treasurer Filipino No relation 56




Ederlinda F. Decano Director of Finance / Filipino No relation

Member The Heritage
Hotel Manila
Management Executive
Committee

43

Divina Gracia D. Delos | Director of Human Filipino No relation
Reyes

Resources/ Member The
Heritage Hotel Manila
Management Executive
Committee

38

Geraldine Nono Gaw Director of Marketing / Filipino No relation

Member The Heritage
Hotel Manila
Management Executive
Committee

47

Ms. Mia G. Gentugaya and Mr. Angelito Imperio are the incumbent independent directors,

One of the grounds for the temporary disqualification of a director under the Revised Manual
on Corporate Governance of the Company is absence in more than fifty (50) percent of all
regular and special meetings of the Board during his incumbency, or any twelve (12) month
period during the said incumbency, unless the absence is due to illness, death in the

immediate family or serious accident. The disqualification shall apply for purposes of the
succeeding election.

Final List of Nominees for Election

The Nomination Committee prepared the final list of candidates for independent directors
based on the recommendations and information submitted by the nominating stockholders:

Procedure for the Nomination and Election of Independent

Under the Company’s By-Laws, the Company shall elect such number of independent
director/(s) as the relevant laws or regulations may require. At least three (3) months
before the annual stockholders’ meeting in which an independent director/(s) shall be
elected, or at such time as the relevant law or regulation may from time to time
prescribe, the incumbent Board of Directors shall meet to appoint a Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee shall consist of at least three (3) members,
one of whom shall be an incumbent independent director.

The Nomination Committee shall prepare the list of candidates for independent
director/(s) based upon qualified candidates nominated by the stockholders. The
Nomination Committee, subject to the approval by the Board of Directors, shall
promulgate the rules, guidelines and criteria to govern the conduct of the nomination.
Only the candidates whose nominations are confirmed by the Nomination Committee
to be in accordance with such rules, guidelines and criteria to govern the conduct of
the nomination. No other nomination shall be entertained after the list of candidates
has been finalized and submitted to the Chairman. No further nomination shall be
entertained or allowed on the floor during the stockholders’ meetin £




The Chairman of the Board, or in his or her absence, the designated chairman of the
stockholders' meeting, shall inform the stockholders attending the stockholders'
meeting of the mandatory requirement of electing independent director/(s). In case of
failure to elect an independent director, the Chairman shall call a separate election
during the same meeting to fill the vacancy.

In case of a vacancy in the position of independent director, the vacancy shall be filled
by a vote of at least a majority of the directors, if still constituting a quorum, based
upon the nomination of the Nomination Committee. In the absence of such quorum,
the vacancy shall be filled in a meeting of the stockholders duly called for that
purpose. An independent director so elected to fill a vacancy shall serve only for the
unexpired term of his predecessor in office.

In its organizational meeting held on 15 May 2015, the Board of Directors appointed
the members of the Company’s Nomination Committee.

On 26 February 2016 the Board of Directors and the Nomination Committee
approved the materials and timetable for the selection of nominees for the Company’s

independent directors, for election in the annual stockholders’ meeting to be held on
16 May 2016.

For 2016, the Board of Directors and the Nomination Committee approved the
following timetable:

a. 4 March 2016 - sending out of notices to stockholders that the Nomination
Committee is accepting nominations for independent directors;

b. 5:00 pm of 18 March 2016 - deadline for the submission of the
recommendation and acceptance of recommendation forms;

& 21March 2016 - deliberations of the Nomination Committee and preparation
of final list of candidates.

Final List of Candidates for Independent Directors

On 21 March 2016, the Nomination Committee approved the final candidates for
independent directors, consisting of the following individuals:

a, Mia G. Gentugaya

Atty. Gentugaya was nominated by The Philippine Fund Limited, Zatrio Pte Ltd and
Yam Kit Sung. She is not related to The Philippine Fund Limited, Zatrio Pte Ltd and
Yam Kit Sung. She is 63 years old, Filipino, and a Philippine resident. Please refer
to the description of her business experience below.

b. Angelito C. Imperio

Atty. Imperio was nominated by Zatrio Pte. Ltd.,The Philippine Fund Limited and
Yam Kit Sung. He is not related to Zatrio Pte. Ltd., The Philippine Fund Limitedand

Yam Kit Sung. He is 75 years old, Filipino, and a Philippine resident. Please refer to
the description of his business experience below.



Under the By-Laws of the Company, cach director elected during the annual stockholders’

meeting shall hold office until the next annual stockholders’ meeting and until his or her
successor has been elected and has qualified.

None of the directors has resigned or has refused to stand for re-election because of a
disagreement with the Company regarding the Company’s operations.

Except for the nominees selected by the Nomination Committee for the position of
independent directors, there are no named nominees for the position of regular directors yet.

The actual nominations for the position of regular directors will be made during the annual
stockholders” meeting.

Business Experience of Directors and Officers (coveri ng at least the past five (5) vears):

A brief description of the business experience of the incumbent directors and officers for the
past five years is provided below:

ALOYSIUS LEE TSE SANG
CHAIRMAN & PRESIDENT

Mr. Aloysius Lee Tse Sang served as chairman and president of the board of Grand Plaza
Hotel Corporation since his appointment on 15 May 2015. Mr. Lee was appointed to the
Board as Group Chief Executive Officer of Millennium and Copthorne Hotels plc on | March
2015. He is a non-executive director of Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand and
CDL Investments New Zealand Limited, both of which are listed on the New Zealand stock
exchange, having been appointed on | April 2015, and he was appointed as a non-executive

director of First Sponsor Group Limited, which is listed on the Singapore Exchange, on 2
April 2015 and continues to serve in that role.

Mr. Lee was previously the Chief Executive Officer of South Beach Consortium Pte Ltd., a
Joint venture established by City Developments Limited and other parties to create a mixed-
use real estate development in Singapore. Prior to that, Mr Lee held senior leadership
positions at Shui On Land, Hong Kong Telecom, Star Cruises and Singapore Airlines. He is a
fellow of both the Chartered Management Institute and the Chartered Institute of Marketing,
and earned a masters degree in business administration from the University of Hong

Kong. He also holds management qualifications from Harvard University and the University
of Hawaii.

BRYAN K. COCKRELL
VICE CHAIRMAN &DIRECTOR

Mr. Bryan Cockrell, an American national, has been a Director of the Company since May
1997. Mr. Cockrell is the Chairman of the Pathfinder Group in the Philippines which has
interests in tourism-related ventures, properties and other joint ventures undertakings and of
the Group’s investments in Vietnam. Before his stint in the Philippines, he held numerous
positions in Singapore, Indonesia and Saudi Arabia.



ANGELITO C. IMPERIO
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Atty. Angelito Imperio has been a Director of the Company continuously since August 1992
and during that span of time, he served as independent Director from 2001 to 2004, and again
from 2008 up to the present. He completed his legal education at the University of the
Philippines (LL.B.) and was admitted to the bar in 1966. He was a senior partner of the law
firm SyCip Salazar Hernandez & Gatmaitan until his retirement in October 2004. He
continued to serve the firm as of counsel until August 2010. At present, his professional work
is limited to outside counseling, particularly on estate planning, and serving as an official
Appellate Court Mediator of civil cases pending in the Court of Appeals.

MIA G. GENTUGAYA
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Atty. Mia Gentugaya is a senior partner and Head of the Banking, Finance and Securities
Group of SyCip Salazar Hernandez & Gatmaitan. She has been a Director of the Company
since August 1992 and served as independent director since 2005. She was admitted to the
Philippine Bar in 1978 after completing her legal education at the University of the
Philippines (LL.B.). Atty. Gentugaya practices corporate and commercial law, and has been
named by Chambers & Partners and The Legal 500 as one of the world’s leading lawyers in
banking and finance, and commercial law. She is a member of the Philippine Bar
Association, a charter member of the Maritime Law Association of the Philippines (Trustee,

1988 — 1989) and the Makati Business Club. She also serves in the Board of Directors of
various companies.

EDDIE B.H. YEO

DIRECTOR, VICE-PRESIDENT, ASSISTANT COMPLIANCE OFFICER & GENERAL
MANAGER OF THE HERITAGE HOTEL MANILA

Mr. Eddie Yeo was appointed as a Director and General Manager of The Heritage Hotel
Manila on 13 January 2005. Prior to his current position, he was the General Manager of
Copthorne Kings Hotel Singapore from January 1999 to 2004. He has more than 42 years
experience in managing and developing hotel projects in Singapore, Malaysia, Thailand,
Australia, USA and Vietnam. He holds a Master of Business Administration from the
University of South Australia, is a Certified Hotel Administrator (CHA) from the Educational
Institute of the American Hotel & Motel Association, Michigan, USA and a Member of the
Chartered Management Institute, UK. He is the Vice President of the Singapore Philippines
Association; Director of the Malaysian Associations of the Philippines and a Director of the
Hotel & Restaurant Association of the Philippines since 2007. Holds the position as Chief of
Staff in the Philippine Coast Guard Auxiliary with the rank of Commander in Squadron 116.

EDDIE C.T. LAU
DIRECTOR

Mr. Eddic Lau, a British national, was first appointed Director of the Company on 17 January
2005. He obtained his MBA from the University of Durham, UK. He is a fellow member of

14



both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute of
Certified Accountants in UK. Mr. Lau is also an associate member of the Chartered Institute
of Bankers in UK. He has more than 25 years experience in the financial industry and has
extensive practical exposures in financial control, business planning and operational
management. He had worked with Hang Seng Bank, Standard Chartered Bank, Bank Austria
and The Long-Term Credit Bank of Japan. For the past twelve years, he was the Financial
Controller of those banks that he worked with. Mr. Lau had also served in the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority as a Bank Examiner to monitor the banks’ compliance in Hong Kong.
Currently, Mr. Lau is the Senior Vice President — Head of Group Finance and Company
Secretary of Asia Financial Holdings Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong. He joined
Asia Financial Holdings Limited since July 2000.

ANTONIO A. RUFINO
DIRECTOR

Mr. Rufino is the Consul General of Portugal. He is currently the Director and President of
Rufson Enterprises, Inc., Mercedes Realty & Dev. Corporation, and R.A. Rufino Holdings,
Inc. He is also a director of other private corporations. He was a senior consultant at the
Metropolitan Manila Dev't. Authority. He completed his college and graduate studies in the
University of San Francisco. Mr. Rufino is a shareholder of the Corporation.

YAM KIT SUNG

GENERAL MANAGER, CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER, COMPLIANCE OFFICER &
CHIEF AUDIT EXECUTIVE

Mr. Yam Kit Sung obtained his Bachelor of Accountancy (Honors) degree from Nanyang
Technological University in Singapore. Upon graduation, he joined the international
accounting firm, Price Waterhouse based in Singapore as an auditor and later joined CDL
Hotels International Limited (now known as Millennium & Copthorne Hotels International
Limited) as an Internal Auditor. In 1996, he joined The Heritage Hotel Manila as an
Operations Analyst and was appointed General Manager of the Company in April 2000. In
June 2006, Mr. Yam was appointed General Manager —Asset Management (China) for HL
Global Enterprises Limited, a company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange. He also sits
on the Board of several companies in the HL Global Enterprises Limited Group.

ARLENE DE GUZMAN
TREASURER

Ms. Arlene de Guzman has been the Company’s Treasurer since August 1997. She is also a
former director and president of the Company. She graduated with a B.S. Business
Economics (cum laude) degree from the University of the Philippines in 1981. Her business
experience includes: Senior Project Evaluation Officer, National Development Company,
Head, Financial Risk Management, Philippine Associated Smelting and Refining Corporation
(PASAR) and currently Senior Vice President of the Pathfinder Group. She is presently a

director and/or officer of the various companies under the Pathfinder Group and Grand Plaza
Hotel Corporation.



MARIA CHRISTINA J. MACASAET-ACABAN
CORPORATE SECRETARY

Ms. Maria Christina Macasaet-Acaban is a partner of the law firm of Quisumbing Torres.
She joined Quisumbing Torres in 1998 after graduating cum laude from the University of the
Philippines College of Law (L1.B. 1998). She was also a recipient of the Dean’s Medal for
Academic Excellence,a member of the Order of the Purple Feather, the honors society of the
University of the Philippines College of Law, and a member of the Pi Gamma Mu Honors

Society and the Phi Kappa Phi Honors Society. She was admitted to the Philippine Bar in
1999,

Ms. Macasaet-Acaban practices corporate and commercial law, with focus on foreign
investments, mergers and acquisitions, corporate compliance. She has represented
multinational corporations operating in various industries, such as pharmaceutical and
healthcare, information technology, outsourcing, manufacturing and real estate, in Philippine
and cross-border transactions, and advised on equity restrictions, investment structures and
regulatory compliance for Philippine business operations.

She serves as corporate secretary and assistant corporate secretary of various private
companies.

She is not an officer or director of other public companies or companies that are grantees of
secondary licenses from the SEC.

ALAIN CHARLES J. VELOSO
ASSISTANT CORPORATE SECRETARY

Mr. Alain Charles Veloso is a senior associate of the law firm Quisumbing Torres. Mr.
Veloso’s practices corporate and commercial law, with focus on antitrust, pharmaceuticals,
securitics, mergers and acquisitions, energy and natural resources, and infrastructure. He
joined Quisumbing Torres in 2006 after graduating class valedictorian and cum laude from
the University of the Philippines College of Law in 2006. He was also a recipient of the
Dean’s Medal for Academic Excellence, a member of the Order of the Purple Feather, a
Chief Justice Fred Ruiz Castro Academic Scholar, an ACCRA - Violeta C. Drilon Merit
Scholar, and a Member of the Pi Gamma Mu Honors Society and the Phi Kappa Phi Honors

Society. Mr. Veloso was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 2007 and ranked 10" in the 2006
Philippine Bar exams. Prior to obtaining his law degree, Mr. Veloso obtained his B.S.
Accountancy from the University of the Philippines — Tacloban College in 2001, graduating
cum laude. Mr. Veloso passed the Philippine licensure exam for Certified Public
Accountants in 2001. He also taught Transportation and Public Utilities Law and Land Titles
and Registration at Centro Escolar University School of Law and Jurisprudence. Mr. Veloso

also lectures at the Mandatory Continuing Legal Education program of the UP Law Center on
antitrust and corporate governance.

Mr. Veloso is also the assistant corporate secretary of various private companies. He is not

an officer or director of other public companics or companies that are grantees of secondary
licenses from the SEC.

GERALDINE NONO GAW



DIRECTOR OF MARKETING, MEMBER — HERITAGE HOTEL MANILA
MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Ms. Geraldine N. Gaw joined the company in 2003 as the Director of Catering and was
promoted as Director of Sales and Marketing in 2008. Prior to joining the Heritage Hatel
Geraldine held the position of Convention and Banquet Sales Manager from 1999 to 2003 at
the Manila Midtown Hotel. She has also held several senior positions in various hotels in
Metro Manila and Davao City, namely the Mandarin Oriental Hotel and the Davao Insular
Intercontinental Inn. She is currently a member of the Hotel Sales and Marketing
Association. Geraldine graduated at the Ateneco De Davao University with a Degree in
Business Administration major in Accounting,

EDERLINDA F. DECANO,

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE , MEMBER ~ HERITAGE HOTEL MANILA MANAGEMENT
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Ms. Ederlinda Decano graduated from University of Santo Tomas in 1994, with a degree in
BS Accountancy and passed the CPA board exam in the same year. She began her career as
an auditor in Diaz Murillo Dalupan, an affiliate of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in the early

'90s. However, moved out of the auditing firm and worked in different industries as
accountant,

She started a job in the hospitality industry in the year 2002, with the Ascott group, which
line of business is Serviced Residence. She had worked with Ascott for 10 years, and worked
her way up in the company - from accountant to Asst, Finance Manager. After 10 years with
Ascott, she joined Manila Mandarin as Chief Accountant, and before the hotel closed, signed
up with Frasers Place Manila (another Serviced Residence) as Finance Manager. All in all,
she has been working in the hospitality industry for 13 years.

DIVINA GRACIA D. DELOS REYES

DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES, MEMBER — HERITAGE HOTEL MANILA
MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

With 16 years of diversified experience in the field of Human Resources, Ms. Divina Gracia
Delos Reyes is ascasoned human resources executive with particular expertise in policy
development and implementation, employment law, employee relations including training
and development and has extensive experience in complex companies.

A Psychology major graduate of De La Salle University — Dasmarifias in 1999, Ms. Delos
Reyes started her career when she was hired by Smart Communications as an HR Assistant
immediately after her on-the-job training. For career advancement she moved to the
academe, retail and hotel industries. She has worked for 8 years in the hospitality industry.

Based on the records of the Company and on the confirmation that we obtained from the
directors and key executive officers of the Company as of 15 April 2016, no directors or key
exceutive officers of the Company are currently connected with any government agencies or
its instrumentalities. The Certification to this effect is attached hereto as Annex "A".
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Members of the Nomination Committee

B g g

Aloysius Lee — Chairman

Bryan Cockrell

Antonio Rufino

Angelito Imperio — Independent Director
Eddie Lau

The Board of Directors appointed The Heritage Hotel Management Executive Committee to
perform the functions of the Remuneration and Compensation Committee of the Company.

Significant Employees

The Company has no significant employees.

Family Relationships

There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or
affinity among the Directors, Executive Officers or persons nominated.

Pending Legal Proceedings

(1) Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation — Dismissal and Termination of the Case entitled

"G.R. No. 204121 (Commissioner of Internal Revenue v. Grand Plaza Hotel
Corporation)" ("VAT Tax Case")

On 9 June 2015, the Company received from its counsel (i.e., Zambrano & Gruba
Law Offices) a Notice from the Clerk of Court of the First Division of the Supreme
Court ("Notice") stating that on 11 February 2015, the First Division of the Supreme
Court resolved to note the Company's Manifestation and grant the Company's
Motion to Dismiss the Commissioner of Internal Revenue's ("CIR") Petition for
Review on Certiorari ("Petition") of the Tax Case for failure of the CIR to comply
with the resolutions issued by the Supreme Court, which required the CIR to submit
a verified statement of material date and the duplicate original or certified true copies
of the assailed Court of Tax Appeals decision and resolution. The Notice also stated
that the Tax Case is considered closed and terminated.

On 24 June 2015, BIR filed a Motion for Reconsideration with the Supreme Court

even though the Supreme Court has previously ruled that the case is considered close
and terminated.

On 13 November 2015, the Company received a Notice from the Supreme Court to

deny the Motion for Reconsideration of BIR and ruled with finality in favor of the
Company.

As disclosed previously by the Company, theVATTax Case arose from the Bureau
of Internal Revenue's ("BIR") Final Decision on Disputed Assessment finding the
Company liable for deficiency value added tax ("VAT") with respect to the years
1996 to 2002 in total amount of PhP228.94 million, inclusive of penalty and interest
from January 2003 to December 2006. The Company subsequently filed a petition
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for review with the Court of Tax Appeal ("CTA") to contest such Final Decision on
Disputed Assessment.

The BIR further issued a Warrant of Distraint and/or Levy and Warrant of
Gamishment against the Company and its assets. On 12 September 2008, the
Company filed a surety bond with the CTA, and the CTA issued a Temporary
Restraining Order enjoining the BIR from further efforts at collection of taxes,
particularly the implementation of the Warrant of Distraint and/or Levy and the
Warrant of Garnishment,

In 2009, the Company moved to have a preliminary hearing conducted to first
resolve the legal issue of whether or not the services rendered by the Company to
PAGCOR is subject to VAT at 10% rate. The CTA granted the motion and hearings
were subsequently conducted. On 18 February 2011, the CTA ruled in favor of the
Company and cancelled the VAT deficiency assessment in foto. In line with the
decision of the Supreme Court in CIR v. Acesite (Philippines) Hotel Corporation,
G.R. no. 147295, 16 February 2007 (" Acesite Case"), the CTA, in its decision dated
18 February 2011, cancelled the BIR's assessment against the Company for
deficiency VAT in the amount of PhP228,943,589.15 for taxable years 1996 to 2002.
In its resolution dated 17 May 2011, the CTA denied the CIR's Motion for
Reconsideration of the CTA’s decision rendered on 18 February 2011. The CIR
shortly filed an appeal with the CTA En Banc.

On 1 September 2011, the CTA En Banc resolved to give course to BIR’s appeal.
The Company filed its Memorandum in October 2011. On 27 July 2012, the CTA En
Banc resolved that, consistent with the pronouncement of the Supreme Court in the
Acesite Case and the case of PAGCOR vs. CIR (G.R. no. 172087, 15 March 2011)
that services rendered to PAGCOR are exempt from VAT, the CIR s petition has no

leg to stand on and must necessarily fall, The BIR subsequently filed a Motion for
Reconsideration.

On 8 October 2012, the CTA En Banc resolved that the CIR’s Motion for
Reconsideration is denied and the earlier decision of the CTA promulgated on 17

May 2011 is affirmed. On 5 December 2012, the CIR filed the Petition with the
Supreme Court.

On 6 May 2013, the Company filed its Comment/Opposition to the Petition. On 17
October 2013, the Company received a notice from the Supreme Court directing the

CIR to file a reply (to the Company’s Comment/Opposition) within 10 days from the
CIR’s receipt of the notice.

In a notice dated 8 October 2014, the Supreme Court declared the petitioner’s (i.e.,
CIR) Manifestation and Motion dated 11 April 2014 as unsatisfactory compliance
with its Resolution dated 28 January 2013, and the Supreme Court further gave a
grace period of 5 days for the BIR to comply.

On 16 December 2014, the Company filed the Manifestation and Motion to Dismiss
the Petition for non-compliance with the jurisdictional requirements, which as stated

in the Noticediscussed earlierwas noted and granted by the Supreme Court in its
resolution dated 11 February 2015.
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(2) Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation versus Commissioner of Internal Revenue (“BIR") —
Court of Tax Appeal ("CTA") Case No. 8992

This case is a Petition for Review with CTA to invalidate the tax deficiency
assessment in relation to year 2008 ("Deficiency Tax Case").

On 20 February 2015, the Company filed a Petition for Review with the CTA to
invalidate the collection proceedings of the BIR. The Petition is based on the
Company's position, as advised by tax counsel, that the collection proceedings
initiated by the Commissioner of Internal Revenue is void because the assessments
did not comply with the requirements of law and lacked factual and legal basis.

The Deficiency Tax Case seeks to have theCTA review the Collection Letter that the
Company received from the BIR on 12 December 2013. As far as the Company is
aware, the Collection Letter was issued by the BIR in connection with a Formal Letter
of Demand for alleged deficiency income tax, value added tax, expanded withholding
tax, withholding tax on compensation and documentary stamp tax for the year 2008,
in the aggregate amount of PhP508,101,387.12 consisting of PhP262.576.825.03 for

basic tax, and interest of PhP245,524,562.09 from 20 January 2009 to 30 September
2013.

On 24 July 2015, the Company received-a Warrant of Distraint and/or Levy dated 24
July 2015 from the BIR (“Warrant”). The Warrant relates to the tax case for year
2008. Considering that a Petition for Review has been earlier filed with the CTA on
20 February 2015 to question the validity of the collection proceedings initiated by
the Commissioner of Internal Revenue and that the matter is currently being litigated
at the CTA, the Company has taken appropriate legalmeasures to ensure that such
Warrant is not implemented during the course of the trial proceedings.

During the CTA hearing on 21 September 2015, the Company presented 2 witnesses
and they were able to furnish their testimonies on the same day. The BIR, on the other

hand, did not present any witnesses and opted to submit the case for the resolution of
the CTA.

ON 18 March 2016, the Company received a Notice of Resolution from the CTA with
regards to the Company’s Motion for Partial Reconsideration with Amended Formal
Offer of Evidence. The CTA granted the Company’s Motion and we have 30 days
from receipt of this Notice to file our Memorandum.,

Other than the above tax cases, to the best knowledge and/or information of the Company,
neither itself nor any of its affiliates and subsidiaries have been involved during the past five
(5) years in any material legal proceedings affecting/involving the Company, its affiliates or
subsidiaries, or any material or substantial portion of their property before any court of law or
administrative body in the Philippines or elsewhere.

To the best knowledge and/or information of the Company, none of its directors, nominees
for clection as director, executive officers, underwriters, or controlled persons, have been
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involved during the past five (5) years, up to 31 March 2016, in any of the following events
that are material to an evaluation of their ability or integrity:

(2)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Any bankruptey petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a
general partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptey or within two
years prior to that time;

Any conviction by final judgment, including the nature of the offense, in a criminal
proceeding, domestic or foreign, or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding,
domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses;

Being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended
or vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently
or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in
any type of business, securities, commodities or banking activities: and

Being found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil
action), the Securities and Exchange Commission or comparable foreign body, or a
domestic or foreign Exchange or other organized trading market or self regulatory
organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law or regulation, and the
judgment has not been reversed, suspended, or vacated.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

In the last two years, there were no material transactions or proposed transactions between
the Company and any director in which the director had a material interest.

Aside from the related party transactions disclosed in Note 14 of the Notes to Financial
Statements of the Company, the Company has no other relationships and related transactions.

Item 6. Compensation of Directors and Officers

Aggregate Compensation of Directors and Officers(i.e., President / CEO and 4 most hi ghly
compensated officers— in Pesos)

Year 2015
NAME POSITION YEAR SA | BONUS OTHERS/
LA DIRECTOR
RY FEES
Eddie Yeo Ban Heng | General Manager of | 2015
Hotel
Yam Kit Sung General Manager of | 2015
the Company
Ederlinda F. Decano Director of Finance 2015
Gigi Gaw Director of Sales & 2015
Marketing
Divina Gracia D. Director of Human 2015
Delos Reyes Resources
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Total

2015 | 15,887,308 | 1,812,642 | 1,272,572
Directors 2015 1,175,264"
All officers &
Directors as a group 2015 15,887,308 | 1,812,642 | 2.447.836
Year 2014
NAME POSITION YEAR | SALARY BONUS OTHERS/
DIRECTOR
FEES
Wong Hong Ren Chairman & 2014
President
Eddie Yeo Ban Heng | General Manager of | 2014
Hotel
Yam Kit Sung General Manager of | 2014
the Company
Cathy Serrano Director of Finance | 2014 -
Gigi Gaw Director of Sales & | 2014
Marketing
Total 2014 | 12,327,371 | 756,719 | 88,815
Directors 2014 1,311,150
All officers & 12,327,371 | 756,719 | 1,399,965
Directors as a group 2014
Year 2013
NAME POSITION YEAR SA | BONUS | OTHERS/
LA DIRECTOR
RY FEES
Wong Hong Ren Chairman & 2013
President
Eddie Yeo Ban Heng | General Manager of | 2013
Hotel
Yam Kit Sung General Manager of | 2013
the Company
Cathy Serrano Director of Finance | 2013
Gigi Gaw Director of Sales & | 2013
Marketing
Total 2013 | 10,065,213 | 948,016 | 8R8.815

‘In 2015, the directors were given the following per diem allowance for their attendance in
meetings in 2015: for the regular directors, PhP1 5,000 per meeting of the Audit Committee

and the Board, and for independent directors, PhP15,000 per meeting of the Audit Committee
and PhP15,720 per meeting of the Board.
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Directors 2013 1,494,626
All officers & 10,065,213 | 948,016 | 1,583,441
Directors as a group 2013

Proposed Remuneration of Officers and Directors for 2016

NAME POSITION SALARY | BONUS | OTHERS/
DIRECTOR
FEES

Yam Kit Sung General Manager
Eddie Yeo General Manager

of The Heritage

Hotel
Divina Gracia D. Delos Reyes Director of HRD
Ederlinda F. Decano Director of
Finance

Gigi Gaw Director of Sales

and Marketing
Total Compensation of the 16,000,000 | 2,000,000 | 1,325,000
Chairman & President and the
4most highly compensated
officers named above
Total Directors’ Per Diem 1,175,000
All officers & Directors as a 16,000,000 | 2,000,000 | 2,500,000

group

The proposed remuneration of the officers named above shall be fixed and approved in a
special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company, to be held prior to the annual
stockholders” meeting, as provided in the Company’s By-Laws.

The proposed per diemof the directors for 2016 above will be presented to the Board of
Directors and to the stockholders for approval at the 2016 annual stockholders’ meeting.
Please note that the per diemof the directors do not involve any other form of remuneration.
There are no arrangements, such as compensatory plan or arrangement or consulting
contracts, pursuant to which any director of the Company was compensated, or is to be
compensated, directly or indirectly, during the Company’s last completed fiscal year, and the
ensuing year, for any service provided as director.

Description of the Terms and Conditions of each Employment Contract between the
Company and Executive Officers

All the key officers who are foreigners are on one-year to two-year employment contracts
that may be renewed for another term upon mutual agreement of the parties. The local
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officers following the Philippine Labor Code are on permanent contract of employment upon
confirmation of their 6-months probation.

The employment contracts of the executive officers do not require such executive officers of
the Company to be paid a total amount exceeding PhP2,500.000 as a result of their

resignation or termination from the Company, or if there is a change in control of the
Company.

Description of the Terms and Conditions of the Compensatory Plan or Arrangement for
the Company’s Executive Officers

The foreign executive officers of the Company are paid a monthly fixed salary with variable
bonus depending on performance. They are also on fixed employment period between 1-2
years and renewable depending on performance.

Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

Election, Approval or Ratification

R. G. Manabat & Co. is the Company’s current independent public accountant. The handling
partner isMs. Alicia Columbres.

[n compliance with the Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, paragraph 3(b)(ix), the
independent auditor or in the case of an audit firm, the signing partner, shall be rotated after
every five (5) years of engagement, subject to the observance of the two-year cooling off
period in the re-engagement of the same signing partner or individual auditor. Ms. Alicia
Columbres, the current handling partner, was first designated as such on 15 May 2013.

The Company’s Audit Committee has recommended R. G. Manabat & Co. for re-
appointment at the annual stockholders” meeting, with Alicia S. Columbres as the handling
partner. Under the Revised Manual on Corporate Governance of the Company, the Audit

Committee shall recommend the nominees for the independent public accountants of the
Company.

The Members of the Audit Committee of the Company are as follows:
1. Mia Gentugaya — Independent Director

2, Bryan Cockrell
3. Antonio Rufino

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee is Ms. Mia Gentugaya.
Representatives of R. G. Manabat& Co are expected to be present at the annual stockholders’

meeting and will be given the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so.

Likewise, they are expected to be available to respond to any appropriate questions that may
be raised during the meeting.

Compliance with SRC Rule 68 3 (b) (iv)
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R. G. Manabat & Co., with Ms. Alicia Columbres as the handling partner, was appointed as
the independent auditor of the Company by the stockholders during the annual stockholders’
meeting held on 29 April 2005. In compliance with SRC Rule 68, par 3(b)(iv), the
independent auditor shall be rotated every five (5) years of engagement. In case of a firm, the

signing partner shall be rotated every five (5) years. Ms. Alicia Columbreswas first
designated as the handling partner on 15 May 2013.

Item 8, Compensation Plans

There are no matters or actions to be taken up in the meeting with respect to any plan
pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation may be paid or distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Item 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

There are no matters or actions to be taken up in the meeting with respect to the authorization
or issuance of any securities of the Company.

Item 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities

There are no matters or actions to be taken up in the meeting with respect to the modification
of any class of securities of the Company, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one
class of securities of the Company in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.

Item 11. Financial and Other Information

The Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 (attached
hereto as Annex “B”) and other information related to the Company’s financial statements
are contained in the Company’s SEC Form 17-A for the year ended 31 December 2015,
which was filed by the Company with the Philippine Stock Exchange and with the SEC on 18

February 2016. The management report required under paragraph (4) of SRC Rule 20 is
attached hereto as Annex “C".

Item 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

There are no matters or actions to be taken up in the meeting with respect to
merger,consolidation, acquisition by, sale or liquidation of the Company.

Item 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

There are no matters or actions to be taken up in the meeting with respect to the acquisition or
disposition of any property.

Item 14, Restatement of Accounts

There are no matters or actions to be taken up in the meeting with respect to the restatement
of any asset, capital, or surplus account of the Company.

D. OTHER MATTERS
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Item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

L. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of the Company
held on 15 May 2015(*Minutes™).

2. Approval of the Annual Report and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015.

The Annual Report to be ratified by the stockholders during the annual stockholders’
meeting, has been disclosed to the stockholders in SEC Form 17-A. The Company’s audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 are attached hereto as Annex “B”.

Action on the Minutes will not constitute approval or disapproval of any of the matters
referred to in the Minutes.

Item 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

There are no matters or actions to be taken up in the meeting which does not require a vote of
the stockholders.

Item 17. Other Proposed Action

. Ratification of all acts and proceedings of the Board of Directors during the year

2015-2016, acting within the scope of their delegated authority and adopted in the
ordinary course of business involving:

a.

b.

d.

h.

Approval of the postponement of the date of, and the record date for, the
Corporation’s annual stockholders® meeting for 2016;

Approval of the documents relating to the nomination of candidates for the
independent directors of the Corporation and the proposed timetable for the
nomination process for the independent directors for 2015-2016:

Election / appointment of officers, including replacement officers, of the
Company and The Heritage Hotel Manila for the year 2015-2016:

Authority with regard to transactions with banks (including change of
signatories, and access to safe deposit box);

Authority to transact with the Philippine Travel Agencies Association;
Authority to claim part of the insurance proceeds of the late Ms. Catherine
Serrano from Sun Life Grepa Financial, Inc.;

Appointment of the Corporation's authorized representative in relation to the
BIR's Mandatory One-Time Submission of Inventory List of all Cash Register
Machines, POS, Special Purpose Machines, and any other similar machines:
Action on the proposed buyback of the shares held by RCBC Trust for
Abundance Providers and Entrepreneurs Corporation;

Approval of the Corporation's Hotel budget for fiscal vear 2016;

Appointment of Ms. Divina Gracia Delos Reyes as HR Director and Ms.
Ederlinda Decano as Director of Finance of the Corporation, to fill-in the
vacancy created by the demise of Ms. Mary Grace Magsalin and Ms.
Catherine Serrano; and

Approval of quarterly reports of the Company during the year 2015 and the
first quarter of 2016.
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4,

Election of the Board of Directors, including the election of the two (2) Independent
Directors.

Election of the independent auditor and the grant of authority to the Board of
Directors to fix the independent auditor' remuneration.

Approval of the remuneration of the Directots.

Item 18. Voting Procedures

The actions to be taken at the annual stockholders’ meeting shall require the vote of
the stockholders representing at least a majority of the Company’s outstanding capital
stock, except for (i) the election of directors, which shall be determined by cumulative
voting under the Corporation Code.

Each stockholder shall be entitled to vote in person and by proxy and, unless
otherwise provided by law, he shall have one (1) vote for each share of stock entitled
to vote and recorded in his name in the books of the Company.

Voting and counting of votes will be done by viva voce.

The Corporate Secretary shall be responsible to count and validate the votes.
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SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, 1 certify
that the information set forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is
signed in the City of Taguig, Philippines, on !

By:

YAM KIf{ SUNG
Genersl Manager /Compliance Officer

Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation

MARIACHRISTINA J. MACASAET-ACABAN
Corporate Secretary
Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation

WITNESSES:
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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
CITY OF TAGUIG )S.8.

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I, Maria Christina J. Macasaet-Acaban, Filipino, of legal age, with office address at the 12" Floor, Net One
Center, 26" Street corner 3™ Avenue, Crescent Park West, Bonifacio Global City, Taguig, Metro Manila,
after having duly sworn, do hereby certify that;

I. | am the duly clected and qualified Corporate Secretary of Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation
("Corporation"), a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the Republic of the
Philippines.

2. Based on our records and on the confirmation that we obtained from the directors or key executive
officers of the Corporation as of 1 April 2016, no directors or key executive officers of the Corporation
are connected with any government agencies or its instrumentalities.

L

| execute this Secretary's Certificate to comply with the requirements of the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Commission, in connection with the Corporation’s Information Statement on SEC Form 20-
IS.

2016, Taguig City, Metro Manila. //‘ ;:
tina J. ﬁvcﬂas 1-Acaban

Corporate Secretary (

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me by Maria Christina J. Macasaet-Acaban, who is personally
known lo me to be the same person who presented the foregoing instrument and signed the instrument in my
presence, this , at Taguig City, Metro Manila, affiant exhibiting to me her Passport
No. EB7554126 issued on 5 March 2013, expiry date on 4 March 2018 at Manila, Philippines.

Doc. Nu.w’?‘ : /[
Page No. 6‘/3 5

Book No. (1 ;

Series of 2016.

lelary Pubii
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GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

12 February 2016
Statement of Management's Responsibility For Financial Statements

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Building, EDSA, Greenhills
City of Mandaluyong

The management of GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION is responsible for
all information and representations contained in the financial statements as of and for
the years ended December 3 1, 2015, 2014 and 2013. The financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the Philippines
and reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and informed judgment of
management with an appropriate consideration to materiality.

In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which
provides for the necessary internal controls o ensure that transactions are properly
authorized and recorded, assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use or disposition
and liabilitics are recognized. The management likewise discloses to the Company’s
audit commitiee and to its external auditor: (i) all significant deficiencies in the desi gn
or aperation of internal controls that could adversely affect its ability to record, process,
and report financial data; (ii) material weaknesses in the internal controls; and (iii) any
fraud that involves management or other employees who exercise significant roles in
internal controls,

The Bof_ard of Directors reviews fhie financial statements before such statements are
approved and submitted to the stockholders of the Company.

10 Floor, The Heritage Hotel Manila, Roxas Bivd cor, EDSA Extension Pasay City

Tel: 854 8838 Fax: 854 8825
A MEMBER OF THE HONG LEONG GROUP SINGAPORF
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Aioysius’}ke Yam Kit Sung

Chairmay and Presjdent General Manager & Chief Financial Officer

Subscribed and swom to before me a notary public for and in the City of this
day of 2016, the signatories exhibiting to me their Community Tax

Certificates/Passports details of which are as follows:

Name Community Tax Certificate/ Date Place of Issue
Passport Number
Aloysius Lee KJ0387859 23 Sept 2014 Hong Kong
Yam Kit Sung
Notary Public
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Aloysius Lee Yam Kit Sung
Chairman and President General Manager & Chief Financial Officer

o , o
Subscribed and sworn to Eci‘gﬁ{}\ne a notary public for and in the City of Fassy Cily this

day of XM 2016, the signatories exhibiting to me their Community Tax
.Cerljﬁcatesf?a,ssportsglﬁiis of which are as follows:

Name ‘Community Tax Certificate/ Date Place of Tssue
Passport Number

Aloysius Lee KJ0387859 23 September 2014 Hong Kong

Yam Kit Sung E3384874K 07 September 2012 Singapore

ATTY, NQ%.’?L::G'EL

NOYARY PuBLIC
UNTIL DECEMBER 21, 2016
PTR un. FNatary Public 4.1 pasay ry
1BP io, 100 ETT 1-4~15 PASAY LiTY.
EGLL M0, 28761
MCLE COMPLIANCE NC.IV-002504 3
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Eddie Yeo Ban Heng ™
Director & Vice President

Y
o W Paczy City
Subscribed and sworn to Qc%(éfe me a notary pub‘l]c for and in the City of* this
day of AN 2016, the signatories exhibiting to me their Community Tax
Certificates/Passporis details of which are as follows:

Name. Community Tax Certificate/ Date Place of Issue
Passport Number

Eddic Yeo Ban'Heng

ATTY, é}aw&yr\(ﬁﬁ.

kY PUBLIC
UNTlr BECEMEBER 31, 2016
prr» ra P a%- 15 PASHY (ITY
o R R B e
i FalL HD. 28761
Page No. I?—f MOLE COMPLIANCE ND, |V-Q0R25043%

‘Book'No., 1—
Series of 2016,



f Great Britain and Northern [reland, duly Commissioned and qualified, do
firm that I verily believe that P, FORBES of the Foreign and Commonwealth

whom the foregoing instrument has been authenticated is an officer duly

legalize the document in the said Office and that the signature appearing
uine,

contents of the foregoing document, the undersigned assumes no

SS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of
the Philippines, London, United Kingdom this 05 FEBRUARY 2016.

7

VOLTAIRE O.C. MAURICIO
Consul

“Validity of §

on shall follow the validity of the attached/underlying document

Document N 927
Service No. 2957
Official Rec 0130
Fee

£18.00



CHEESWRIGHTS

NOTARIES PUBLIC

TO ALL TO WHOM THESE PRESENTS SHALL COME, |
MICHELLE SCOTI-BRYAN of the City of London, England
NOTARY PUBLIC by royal authority duly admitted. sworn and
holding a faculty to practise throughout England and Wales,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY the genuineness of the signature of
TSE SANG ALOYSIUS LEE subscribed in two places fo the
document hereunto annexed, such signature being in each
case in the own, true and proper handwiriling of the said Tse
Sang Aloysius Lee, whose identity | attest.

IN FAITH AND TESTIMONY WHEREOF | the said notary have
subscribed my name and set and affixed my seal of office in
London, England this fourth day of February in the year two
thousand and sixteen.

Pegulaied by the Foculty Olfica of the Archlithop of Conteibun

Barkside House 107 Leodenholl Stee! London ECIA 4AF
Tel 020 7??3 2477 Fox 02(::623 EIZB
N ~-mail Dmﬂd‘”iw $.C0.Ul
SCRIVINER DX 627/ lmdvn City EC3  wwwicheeswrights.co.uk



GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation (the Company), is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements as at and for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, including the additional components attached therein, in
accordance with the prescribed financial reporling framework indicated thercin. This
responsibility includes designing and implementing intemal controls relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material nisstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors review and approve the financial statements and submits the same to the
stockholders.

R. G. Manabat Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has audited the
-financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in
its report to the stockholders, has expressed its opinion on the faimness of presentation upon
completion of such audit.

Signature: O}W LJ—\

Tse Sang Alyéius Lee — Chairman of the Board

Signature; 0"0%&—\

Tse Sang A[oy?{s Lee - Chief Executive Officer

Signature: W

Yam Kit Sung - ChieffFinancial Officer

Signed this day of

10Th Floor, The Herttage Hotel Maniia. Roxas Blvd. cor, EDSA Ext., Pasay City
Telephons Mo. B548333 * Facsimils Mo, A843525
= MEMBER OF THE HOM(Z LEONG GROUP SINGAPORE



GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
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R.G. Manabat & Co, Telephone  +63 (2] B85 7000

The KPMG Cenler, S/F Fax +63 (2) B94 1885
8707 Ayela Avenue Internet wyww. kpma.com ph
Makati City 1226, Metro Manila, Philippines E-Mail pheinguiry@kpma.com

Branches: Subic - Cebu « Bacolod - lioilo

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS F OR FILING WITH THE
BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation

10" Floor, The Heritage Hotel Manila
EDSA corner Roxas Boulevard

Pasay City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation as at
and for the year ended December 31 » 2015, on which we have rendered our reporl thereon dated
February 12, 2016.

In compliance with Revenue Regulation V-20, we are stating that no partner of our Firm is

related by consanguinity or affinity Lo the president or any member of the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of the Company,

R.G. i\‘L‘LNABAT & CO.

U hwrw

ALICIA S. COLUMBRES
Partner
CPA License No. 069679
SEC Accreditation No, PA-A-729-A, Group A, valid until May 19, 2016
Tax Identification No. 120-964-156
BIR Accreditation No, 08-001987-27-2014
Issued September 26, 2014; valid until September 25, 2017
PTR No. 5320743MD
Issued January 4, 2016 at Makati City

February 12, 2016
Makati City, Metro Manila

R.G. Moanbat & Co,, 0 Philipging pannorsiip ong o mamber lirm of the KPMG PRC-BOA Aogistation Mo, Nid wntil
nanwerk of irdepandam Mms offiad wih KPMG | e i EC Ascrdizion o, 009 po e U7l Drcamber 31, 2018

3 1 : " 5 e, DOD4-FR-1, Group A, valid until Novamber 10, 2017
:’mh&:'::l:::\mn Mﬂr}*mﬁ‘;nm:w m:nmchm 12 Accicditation Na, F-a014/014.5, w.lfidpunﬂ Buguct 26, 2017 3

3 8 eny But ohigata or b MG BSP Atcrudited, Catogary A, vai
Intornatlonal or any othar mrembor firm vig.b-vig third pariios, nor dos KPMG e T G,
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fiahts mernnnd




R.G. Manabat & Co, Telaphone 453 (2) 885 7000

The KPMG Center, O/F Fax +63 (2) B34 1985
6787 Ayala Avenup Internet wwaw.kpmg.com, ph
Makati City 1226, Metro Manils, Phifppines E-Mail ph-inquiry@kpmg.com

Branches: Subic - Cebu - Bacolod - llaiia

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation

10" Floor, The Heritage Hotel Manila
EDSA comer Roxas Boulevard

Pasay City

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation,
which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 3 1, 2015 and 2014, and the
statements of profit or loss, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity
and statements of cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 3 I,

2015, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to EXpress an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards
requirc that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of malerial misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion,

FL.G. Marata1 & Co,  Fhilipping partrorship ang g mombar firm of the KAMG PARC-BOA Ragistmiian
etk af indepandent firme: offiaied with KPMG Intermatianal Cooparalivy SEC Aeemditatian Mo,
PEPMG Intemationan, s Swise wetity, KPMQ Imarnaiona) provides no eliant IC Accindiaton Na, F-2014100 4.8, valig unid August 20, 2017
sandeat. No mermbor fimm has sy sutharity fo obligata or tied KPMG BSP Acemditnd, Catogory A, valid un Decomber 17 ZIDIJ'
Internsicnel or any ather marmibar firm visdada third penios, nor doas KPMG )

Interantionsl hava any such sutharivy 1 ebiiguin o bing oy mambar fem. Al
bR mesned

N, 0003, vatid wniil Decombar 31, 2015

DO04-FA, Group A. vald uniil Novemba: 10, 2017



REna

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation as at December 3 1, 2015 and 2014, and its financia)
performance and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2015 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations
No. 15-2010 of the Bureau of Internal Revenue

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information in Note 28 to the financial
statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements, Such information is the responsibility of
management. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our
audits of the basic financial statements, In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,

R.G. MANABAT & CO.

(Y lman’

ALICIA S. COLUMBRES
Partner
CPA License No. 069679
SEC Accreditation No. PA-A-T29-A, Group A, valid until May 19, 2016
Tax Identification No, 120-964-156
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-27-2014
Issued September 26, 2014; valid until September 25, 2017
PTR No. 5320743MD
Issued January 4, 2016 at Makati City

February 12, 2016
Makati City, Metro Manila



GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
Note 2015 2014
ASSETS
Current Asscts
Cash and cash equivalents 4,26 P239,183,149 P237,078.063
Receivahles - net g, 14,26 106,060,371 304,110,706
Loan receivable 9,14 26 15,500,000 15,500,000
Due from related parties 14, 26 50 350
Inventories 6 12,340,792 13,993 229
Prepaid expenses and other current assels 7 14,074,733 12,230,638
Total Current Assets 387,159,095 582.912.986
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment - net 10 590,922,343 624,662,660
Investment in an associate 8 14 52,613,701 50,241,237
Deferred tax assets - net 22 8,958,812 ~ 12,398,139
Other noncurrent asscts 11,14, 20, 26 87,791,609 84,095,791
Total Noncurrent Assets 740,286,465 771,397.827
P1,127,445,560 P1,354,310813
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 12, 26 P83,099,316 P77.919,262
Refundable deposits - current portion 19,20, 25 25,349,438 49,346,738
Due to related parties 14, 20, 26 6,798,190 6,090,243
Income tax payable - 1,802,477
Other current liabilities 13, 26 17,827,940 230,761,713
Total Current Liabilities 133,074,884 365,920,433
Noncurrent Liabilities
Refundable deposits - net of current portion 19, 20, 25 5,396,673 6,773,081
Accrued retirement benefits liability 21 15,489,767 26,634,668
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 30,886,440 33,407,749
Total Liabilities 163,961,324 399,328,182
Equity
Capital stock 24 873,182,700 873.182,700
Additional paid-in eapital 14,657,517 14,657,517
Remeasurement gains on defined
bencfit plan 21 7425564 4,696,038
Retained earnings:
Appropriated 23 1,680,020,370 1,680,020,370
Unappropriated 68,218,455 62,446,376
Treasury stock 24 (1,680,020370) (I ,680,020,370)
Total Equity 963,484,236 954 982,631

P1,127.445,560 P1,354.310,813

See Notes to the Financial Statemerits.



GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Years Ended December 31

Note 2015 2014 2013
REVYENUES
Rooms P287,584,011 P312,084,720 P336,688,055
Food and beverage 137,481,964 141,017,832 158,290,397
Other operating departments 4,767,442 6,491,204 6,665,324
Others 20 17,518,267 7,353,953 81,009,951
447,351,684 466,947,799 582,653,727
COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES 15
Food and beverage 50,925,932 53,388,923 56,283 435
Other operating departments 3,581,260 2,897,083 3,466,534
54,507,192 56,286,006 59,749 969
392,844,492 410,661,793 522,903,758
SELLING EXPENSES 16 192,493,454 211,628,674 214,534 010
ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES 17 212,349,400 217,135,639 199,528,308
404,842,854 428,764,313 414,062,318
NET OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) (11,998.362) (18.102,520) 108,841,440
OTHER INCOME
(EXPENSES)
Foreign exchange gain 9,379,100 180,991 7,126,239
Interest income 4.9 11,14, 20 8,946,563 5,344,592 7,125401
Income from refundable deposits 19 3,986,875 - -
Equity in net income of an associal 8 2,372,464 1,774,099 611,039
Loss on disposal of property and
equipment 10 (1,166,747) - -
Reversal of accruals 12 - 14,767,900 -
Others 880.460 - 76,700
24,398,715 22,067,582 14,939 379
INCOME BEFORE
INCOME TAX 12,400,353 3.965,062 123,780,819
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 22 6,628,274 3,571,164 38,204,143
NET INCOME P5,772,079 P393 898 PR5.,576,676
Basic and Diluted Earnings
Per Share 18 PoO.11 P0.O1 P1.53

Seet Notes to the Einancial Statsments,



GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Nore 2015 2014 2013
NET INCOME P5,772,079 P393,898 P85,576,676
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS) 21
Item that will never be
reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined
benefit plan 3,899,323 (1,984,581) (1,469,984)
Income tax relating to an item
that will not be reclassified
subsequently (1,169,797) 595,374 440,995
2,729,526 (1,389,207) (1,028,0809)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIYVE
INCOME (LOSS) P8,501,605 (P995,309) P84,547 687

See Notes tn the Financial Statements
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GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Note

2015 2014 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P12,400,353 P3,965,062 P123,780.819
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization 10, 17 39,558,871 38,864,197 36,293,759
Write-off of receivables 5,17 12,617,105 - -
Retirement benefits cost 21 3,154,728 2952313 2,824,844
Loss on disposal of property and
cquipment 10 1,166,747 - -
Provision for impairment losses
on receivables 17, 26 94,343 13,156,558 27,260
Unrealized foreign exchange loss
(gain) (9,033,582) 1,380,284 (3,497,543)
Interest income 4.9 14. 20 (8,946,563) (5.344,592) (7.125.401)
Equity in net income of an
associate 8 (2.372,464) (1,774,099) (611,039
Operating income before working
capital changes 48,639,538 53,199,723 151.692.699
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables (18,400,281) (1,779.5337) (13.464,592)
Inventories 1,652,437 (410,782) Q78,154
Due from related parties 300 1,884 750 242922
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets 306,550 6,252,206 (2.686.903)
Other noncurrent assets (3,695,818) - -
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and acerucd
expenses 5,180,054 351,573 (4.211.202)
Due to related parties 707,947 3,974,822 (4.728,066)
Refundable deposits (25,373,708) 26,999,029 (2.111,085)
Other current liabilities (9,131.411) 3,575,163 3,091,261
Cash generated from (absorbed by)
operations (114392) 94,047,037 128,803,288
Interest received 8,883,369 11,866,287 21,595,709
Income taxes paid (8,311,866) (7.999.596) (50,262,007)
Retirement benefits paid 21 (400.306) (217,003) (5.808,525)
Net cash provided by operating
activities 56,805 97,696,725 75,328,465

Farward




Years Ended December 31

Note

2015

2014

2013

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITY

Additions to property and
equipment

i0

(P6,985,301)

(P15,886,533)

(P13,096.096)

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITY
Acquisition of treasury stock

24

(49,242,500)

(142,466.650)

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES ON CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

9,033,582

(1,380,284)

3,497,543

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)
IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

2,105,086

237,078,063

31,187,408

205,890,655

(76.736,738)

282,627,393

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

P239,183,149

P237,078.,063

P205,890,655

St Notes to the Financial Statements.



GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Reporting Entity

Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation (the “Company™) was incorporated and registered with
the Philippine Securitics and Exchange Commission (SEC) on August 9, 1989 primarily
to own, lease or manage one or more hotels, inns or resorts, all adjuncts and accessories
thereto, and all other tourist-oriented businesscs as may be necessary in connection
therewith. The Company is a public company under Section 17.2 of the Securities
Regulation Code and its shares are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). The
Company is 54% owned by The Philippine Fund Limited (TPFL), a corporation
organized in the Islands of Bermuda, The ultimate parent of the Company is Hong Leong
Investment Holdings Pte Ltd., a corporation organized in Singapore.

The Company owns and operates The Heritage Hotel (the “Hotel™), ils only operating
segment, which is a deluxe class hotel that offers 450 rooms and facilities and amenities
such as restaurants, function halls, and a coffee shop. The address of the Company's

registered and principal office is the 10® Floor, The Heritage Hotel Manila, EDSA comner
Roxas Boulevard, Pasay City,

2. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRSs). PFRSs are hased on International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).
PFRSs which are issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council
(FRSC), consist of PFRSs, Philippine Accounting Standards (PASs), and Philippine
Interpretations.

The financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2015 were approved
and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors (BOD) on February 12, 2016.

Basis of Measurement

The financial siatements have been prepared on the historical cost basis of accounting

excepl for the present value of the defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan assets,
if any,

Functional and Presentation Currency

The Company’s financial stalemenis are presented in Philippine peso, which is the

Company's functional currency. All values are rounded off to the nearest peso, except
when otherwise stated.




Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRSs requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the Judgments about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Judgments are made by management on the developments, selection and disclosure of the

Company’s critical accounting policies and estimates and the application of these policies
and estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions area reviewed on ongoing basis, Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods,

The following presents the summary of these judgments and estimates, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Determining whether an Agreement Contains a Lease

The Company uses its judgment in determining whether an arrangement contains a lease,
based on the substance of the arrangement at inception date and makes assessment of
whether the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets, the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset and the arrangement transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental tg ownership to the Company.

Operating Lease

The Company has entered into various lease arran gements either as a lessor or a lessee.
In determining whether all significant risks and rewards of ownership remain with the
lessor or transferred to the lessee, the following factors are considered:

a. the ownership of the asset does not transfer at the end of the lease term;

b. there is no option to purchase the assel at a price that is expected to be sufficiently
lower than the fair value at the date the option becomes exercisable such that, at the
inception of the lease, it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised:

¢ the lease term is not for the major part of the economic life of the asset even if title is
not transferred;

d. at the inception of the lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments does
not amount to at least substantially all of the fair value of the |cased assel; and

e. the leased assets are not of such a specialized nature that only the lessee can use them
without major modificatians.

Company as L essor

The Company has entered into a lease of its commercial spaces. The Company has
determined that it retains all significant risks and rewards of ownership of these spaces
which are leased out under operating lease arrangements (see Note 20).



Company as Lessee

The Company has entered into a lease of land. All the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the leascd land remain with the lessor, since the leased property, together
with the buildings thereon, and all attached permanent fixtures will be retumed to the
lessor upon the termination of the lease (see Note 20).

Estimating Allowance for Impairment Losses on Receivables

The Company maintains an allowance for impairment losses at a level considered
adequate to provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The level of this allowance is
evaluated by management on the basis of factors that affect the collectability of the
accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to, the length of the Company's
relationship with the customers, customers’ payment behavier and known market factors.
The Company reviews the age and status of receivables, and identifies accou nts that are
to be provided with allowance on a regular basis. The amount and timing of recorded
expenses for any period would differ if the Company made different Jjudgments or
utilized different estimates. An increase in allowance for impairment losses would
increase the recorded administrative expenses and decrease current assets.

As at December 31,2015 and 2014, allowance for impairment losses on trade receivables
amounted to P13,406,522 and P13,312,179, respectively (see Note 5). As at

Decembers31, 2015 and 2014, the carrying amount of receivables amounted to
P106,060,371 and P304,110,706 (see Note 5).

Estimating Net Realizable Value of Inventories

In determining the net realizable value of inventories, the Company considers inventory
obsolescence, physical deterioration, physical damage and changes in price levels or
other causes based on specific identification and as determined by management for
inventories estimated 1o he salable in the future. The Company adjusts the cost of
inventory to recoverable value at a level considered adequate to reflect market decline in
value of the recorded inventories. The Company reviews its inventories on a regular
basis to identify those which are to be written down to net realizable values,

Inventories, at cost, amounted to P12,340,792 and P 13,993,229 as at December 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively (see Note 6).

Estimating Useful Lives of Property and Equipment

The Company estimates the useful lives of property and equipment based on the period
over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of
property and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations differ
from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial
obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the asscts. In addition, the estimation
of the useful lives of property and equipment is based on collective assessment of internal
technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that
future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in estimates brought
about by changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of recorded
expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances.

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the carrying amount of property and equipment
amounted to P590,922,343 and P624,662.660, respectively (see Note 10),



Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting date
and reduces deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets o be utilized.
The Company also reviews the expected timing and tax rates upon reversal of temporary
differences and adjusts the impact of deferred tax accordingly.

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company's deferred tax asseis amounted to
P14.851,272 and P14,410,727, respectively (see Note 22).

Estimating Retirement Benefits Obligations

The determination of the obligation and retirement benefits cost is dependent on the
selection of certain assumptions used by the actuary in calculating such amounts. Those
assumptions include, among others, discount rates and salary increase rates,

The Company’s retirement benefits liability amounted to P25,489,767 and P26,634,668
as at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Tn 2015 and 2014, the retirement
benefits cost recognized in profit and loss amounted to P3,154,728 and P2,952,313,
respectively. Cumulative actuarial gain amounted to P10,607,949 and P6.,708,626 as al
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (sce Note 21),

Estimating Alfowance for fmpairment Losses on Nonfinancial Assets

The Company assesses impairment on nonfinancial assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such asset may not be recoverable.
The factors that the Company considers important which could trigger an impairment
review include the following:

* significant underperformance relative to the expected historical or projected future
operating results;

* significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for
overall business; and

* significant negative industry or economic trends,

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an assel exceeds ils
recoverable amount,

There were no impairment losses on the Company’s nonfinancial assets recognized as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014,

Estimating Provisions and Contingencies

The Company, in the ordinary course of business, sets up appropriale provisions for its
present legal or constructive obligations in accordance with its policies on provisions and
contingencies. The estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of possible ¢laims has

been developed in consultation with its legal counsel and is based upon an analysis of
potential results,

There were no provisions or contingencies recognized as at December 31, 2015 and
2014.



3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all the years
presented in these financial statements, except for the changes in accounting policies as
explained below.

Adoption of New or Revised endments to Standards and Interpretations
The Company has adopted the following amendments to standards starting January 1,
2015 and accordingly, changed its accounting policies. Except as otherwise indicated, the
adoption of these amendments to standards did not have any significant impact on the
Company's financial statements.

*  Annual Improvements to PFRSs: 2010 - 2012 and 2011 - 2013 Cycles - Amendments
were made to a total of nine standards, with changes made to the standards on
business combinations and fair value measurement in both cycles. Most amendments
will apply prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014. Earlier
application is permitted, in which case the related consequential amendments to other
PFRSs would also apply. Special transitional requirements have been set for
amendments to the following standards: PFRS 2, PAS 16, PAS 38 and PAS 40. The
following is one of the said improvements or amendments to PFRSs. none of which
has a significant effect on the financial statements of the Company:

e Definition of ‘related party” (Amendment to PAS 24). The definition of a *related
party” is extended to include a management entity that provides key management
personnel (KMP) services to the reporting entity, either directly or through a
group entity. For related party transactions that arise when KMP services are
provided to a reporting entity, the reporting entity is required to separately
disclose the amounts that it has recognized as an expense for those services that
are provided by a management entity; however, it is not required to ‘Jook
through® the management entity and disclose compensation paid by the
management entity to the individuals providing the KMP services. The reporting
entity will also need to disclose other transactions with the management enfity
under the existing disclosure requirements ol PAS 24 - e.g. loans.

S ds Issued but Not Yet Adopted

A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods
beginning afler January 1, 2015. However, the Company has not applicd the following
new or amended standards in preparing these financial statements. Unless otherwise

stated, none of these are expected to have a sipnificant impact on the Company's
financial statements.

Elfective January 1, 2016

*  Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments
to PAS 16 and PAS 38). The amendments to PAS 38 Intangible Assets introduce a
rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based amortization methods for
intangible assets is inappropriate. This presumption can be overcome only when
revenue and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are

‘highly correlated’, or when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue,



The amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment explicitly state that
revenue-based methods of depreciation cannot be used for property, plant and
equipment. This is because such methods reflect factors other than the consumption
of economic benefits embodied in the asset - c.g. changes in sales volumes and
prices.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016, and are to be applied prospectively. Early application is permitted.

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to PAS 1 ) addresses some concerns expressed
about existing presentation and disclosure requirements and to ensure that entities are
able to use judgment when applying PAS 1. The amendments clarify that:

* Information should not be obscured by aggregaling or by providing immaterial
information,

® Materiality considerations apply to all parts of the financial statements, even
when a standard requires a specific disclosure.

® The list of line items to be presented in the statement of financial position and
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income can be disaggregated

and aggregated as relevant and additional guidance on subtotals in these
statements,

® An entity's share of OCI of equity-accounted associates and joint ventures
should be presented in aggregale as single line items based on whether or not it
will subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss.

The amendments are to be applicd retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2016, Early adoption is permitted.

Effective January 1, 2018

PFRS 9, Finaneial Instruments (2014). PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Mcasurement and supersedes the previously published
versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications and measurement
requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting model (in 2013).
PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial
assets, including a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment,
guidance on own credit risk on financial liabilitics measured at fair value and
supplements the new general hedge accounting requirements published in 2013,
PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting requirements that represent a major
overhaul of hedge accounting and introduces significant improvements by aligning
the accounting more closely with risk management.

The new standard is to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted.



Financial Instruments

Non-derivative Financial Instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables,
loan receivable, due from related parties, deposits (included under other noncurrent
assets). accounts payable and accrued expenses, due to related parties, refundable
deposits, and other current liabilities .except for output VAT payable and withholding
taxes payable,

The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statements of
financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assels, recognition and
derecognition, as applicable, is done using settlement date accounting.

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, which is the fair value of the
consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability). The fair value
of the consideration given or received is determined by reference to the transaction price
or other market prices. If such market prices are not reliably determinable, the fair value
of the consideration is estimated as the sum of all future cash payments or receipts,
discounted using the prevailing market rate of interest for similar instruments with
similar maturities. The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those
designated at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), includes transaction cost.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, available-for-sale (AFS)
financial assets, financial assets at FVPL, and loans and receivables; while the Company
classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories: financial liabilities at FVPL
and other financial liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
investments are acquired and whether they are quoted in an active market. Management
determines the classification of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities at
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at
every reporting date,

The Company has no financial assets at HTM investments, AFS financial assets,
financial assets at FVPL and financial liabilities at FVPL.

The measurement of non-derivative financial instruments subsequent to initial
recognition is described below:

Loans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are not
entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not designated
as AFS financial assets or financial asset at FVPL. Loans and receivables are carried at
cost or amortized cost, less any allowance for impairment losses. Amortization is
determined using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognized in

profit or loss when the loans and receivables arc derecognized or impaired, as well as
through amortization process.

Included in this category are the Company's cash and cash equivalents, receivables, loan
receivable, due from related parties and deposits.

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, hi ghly liquid
investments that arc readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original

maturities of three months or less from dates of acquisition and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value,



Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains to nonderivative financial liabilities
that are not held for trading or not designated at FVPL al the inception of the liability,
They are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, these arc
measured at amortized cost, laking into account the impact of applying the effective
interest rate method of amortization (or accretion) for any related premium, discount and
any directly attributable transaction costs.

Included in this category are the Company’s accounts payable and acerued expenses, due
to related parties, refundable deposits, and other current liabilities except for output VAT
payable and withholding taxes payable.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilitics

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are offset and the net amourt 1s reported in the
statements of financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right
to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to seltle on a net basis. or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultancously. This is not generally the case

with master netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross
in the statcments of financial position.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

" therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired:

the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asscl, but has assumed

an obligation to pay them in full without malerial delay to a third party under a
“pass-through" arrangement; or

the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or (b) has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assct, but
has transferred control of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
assct is rccognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guaranice over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to pay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under (he
liability is discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss,



Determination of Fair Values

A number of the Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the
determination of fair value, for both financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilitics. Fair
values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes. when
necessary, based on the market values, being the estimated amount for which assets could
be exchanged on the date of the valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in
an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had cach acted
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion. When applicable, further information
about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific
to that asset or liability,

The different levels of fair value of financial instruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method have been defined as follows:

® Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

* Level2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices): and

" Level3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined
using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) principle, and includes expenditures incurred in
acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the

estimated costs of selling expenses. Obsolete inventories are disposed of and related
cosls are recognized in profit or loss.

Investment in an Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Company has significant influence, but not control.
over the financial and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when
the Company holds between 20 and 50 percent of the voting power of another entity.

Investment in an associate is accounted for under the equity method of accounting and is
recognized initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The
carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the Company's share of the profit
or loss of the associate after the date of acquisition until such time the Company loses its
significant influence. The Company’s share of the profit or loss of the associate is
recognized as “Equity in net income of an associate” in profit or loss.

The Company discontinues applying the equity method when its investment in the
investee company is reduced to zero. Accordingly, additional losses are not recognized
unless the Company has guaranteed certain obligations of the investee company. When
the investee company subsequently reports net income, the Company will resume
applying the equity method but only after its share in net income equals the share in net
losses not recognized during the period the cquity method was suspended.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation, amortization
and impairment losses, if any.



Initially, an item of property and equipment is measured at its cost, which comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working
condition. Subsequent expenditures are added to the carrying amount of the assel when it
is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of
performance, will flow to the Company, The costs of day-to-day servicing an asset are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives
of property and equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated
useful lives or the term of the lease, whichever is shorter.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Number of Years
Building and building improvements 46 - 50
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5-10
Transportation equipment 5
Leasehold improvements 5 or term of the lease

whichever is shorter

Estimated uscful lives and depreciation and amortization methods arc reviewed at each

reporting date to ensure that they are consistent with the expecied pattern of economic
benefits from these assets.

When an asset is disposed of, or is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal, the cost and accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, if any, are removed from the accounts and any

resulting gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal is recognized in profit or
loss.

Impairment of Assets

Financial Assets
Financial assets are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date,

Assets Carried at Amortized Cost, If there is abjective evidence that an impairment loss
on receivable carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e.. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be acerued on the reduced carrying amount
based on the original effective interest rate of the asset. Receivables together with the
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral, if any, has been realized or has been transferred to the Company. If in
a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account,
If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is recognized in profit or loss. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date,
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The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for
impairment, Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in the collective
assessment of impairment. For the purpose of specific evaluation of impairment, the
Company assesscs whether financial assets are impaired through assessment of
collectability of financial assets considering the debtor’s capacity to pay, history of
payment, and the availability of other financial support. For the purpose of collective
evaluation of impairment, if necessary, financial assets are grouped on the basis of such
credit risk characteristics such as debtor type, payment history, past-due status and terms.

Assets Carried at Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss is incurred
on an unquoted cquity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannol be reliably measured, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of retumn for a similar financial assel.

Nonfinancial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s nonfinancial assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated,

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) is the greater of its
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use is the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or CGU, while fair value less
costs of disposal is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset or CGU in an arm's
length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of meney and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing,
assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets or CGUs. An impairment loss is
recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized,

Capital Stock

Capital stock are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue

of common shares and share options are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of
any tax effects.

Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the initial issuance of
capital stock. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted
from additional paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefit.
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Treasury Stock

When share capital recognized as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration
paid, which includes directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognized as a
deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and arc
presented in the reserve for own shares. When treasury shares are sold or reissued
subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase in equity, and the
resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented in additional paid-in capital.

Retained Earnings

The amount included in retained earnings includes ecarnings attributable to the
Company’s equity holders and reduced by dividends, if any, on capital stock. Dividends
on capital stock are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are
declared by the Company's stockholders. Dividends for the year that are approved after
the financial reporting date are dealt with as an event after the financial reporting date.

Retained eamings may also include prior year adjustments and the effect of changes in
accounting policies as may be required by the standards’ transitional provisions.

Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts
and volume rebates. The following specific recognition criteria must also be mct before
revenue is recognized:

Room Revenue: Revenue is recognized upon actual room occupancy.
Food and Beverage: Revenue is recognized upon delivery of order.
Other Operating Departments: Revenue is recognized upon rendering of service,

Other Income; Rent income from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Interest income which is presented net of tax, is recognized when eamed.

Costs and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Philippine peso based on the
prevailing exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilitics
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated using the exchange rates prevailing at

the reporting date. The resulting foreign exchange gains or losses are recognized in
profit or loss,

Operatin ent

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in
providing related products or services (business segment), or providing products or
services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment). which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those other segments.

The Company determines and presents operating segments based on the information that
is internally provided to the Chief Operating Officer, who is the Company's chief
operating decision maker, The Company assessed that its hotel business represents one
segment.
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Operating Leases - Company as Lessee

The Company leases the land it occupies from a related party under a long-term lease
agreement, Management has determined that all significant risks and rewards of this
property remain with the lessor. Accordingly, such lease is accounted for as operating
lease.

Operating Leascs - Company as Lessor

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership of the assets are classified as operating leases, Rent income from operating
leases is recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognized as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as rent

income. Contingent rents are recognized as income in the period in which they are
eamed.

Taxes

Income tax expense is composed of current and deferred {ax. Income tax expense is
recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly
in equity or in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognized in equity or
other comprehensive income.

Current Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority. The tax rates and tax

laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted as at
reporting date, :

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary difTerences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
the amounts used for taxation purposes and the carryforward tax benefits of unused net
operating loss carryover (NOLCO) and unused tax credits from ecxcess minimum
corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax (RC IT). Deferred tax
is not recognized for temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss; temporary differences related to investments in
subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will
not reverse in the foreseeable future; and taxable temporary differences arising on the
initial recognition of goodwill,

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the
carryforward tax benefits of unused NOLCO and unused tax eredits from excess MCIT
can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized,
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized

to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable income will allow the
deferred 1ax assets lo be recognized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset

current tax liabilities and assets, and the deferred taxes relate to the same Lax authority on
the same taxable entity.

Value-added Tax (VAT). Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount
of VAT, except:

* where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services are not recoverable from
the tax authority, in which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

= receivables and payables that are stated with amount of VAT included.

The input and output VAT are presented at gross and included under prepaid expenses
and other current assets and other current liabilities in the statements of financial
position

Eamings per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its common shares.
Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the year, after giving retroactive effect to any stock
dividends declared during the year, if any, Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
net income for the effects of all dilutive potential shares,

Related Parties

Parties are considered related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to

common control or significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate
entities.

Emplovee Benefits

Retirement Costs

The Company's net obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated by
estimating the amount of the future benefit that employees have earned in the current and
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed on a periodic basis by a
qualified actuary appointed by the Company using the projected unit eredit method.
When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognized assct is
limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any futre
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions 1o the plan. To calculate the
present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum
funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset cciling
(if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income.
The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit
liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit cbligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then net defined benefit
liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined liability (asset) during
the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and
other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.
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When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change
in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized
immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Short-term Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are cxpensed as the related service is provided. A liability
is recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the
financial statementis but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable,

Events After the Reportin

Any event afler the reporting date that provide additional information about ihe
Company’s financial position at the reporting date (adjusting event) is recognized in the
financial statements when material. Any event after the reporting date that is not an
adjusting event is disclosed in the notes to the financial statcments when material.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

Note 2015 2014
Cash on hand and in banks P45,741,556 P69,719,296
Short-term investments 193,441,593 167,358,767

26 P239,183,149  P237,078.063

Cash in banks earns annual interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Short-term
investments consist mainly of time deposits which earn annual interest ranging from
0.15% to 0.5% in 2015, 2014 and 2013. Interest income earned amounted to P575,745,

P669.592 and P2,450,401 for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
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5. Receivables

This account consists of:

Note 2015 2014
Trade:

Charge customers 26 P47,157,969 P36,448,610

Receivables from Philippine Amusement
and Gaming Corporation (PAGCOR) 16,162,682 232,582,149
Others 5,588.310 9,788,887
68,908,961 278.819,646
Utility charges 17,482,878 17,405,243
Deposit to suppliers 16,801,170 4,430,028
Interest 4 11,075,692 11,012,498
Others 14 5,198,192 5,755,470

119,466 893 317422885
Less allowance for impairment losses on

trade receivables 26 13,406,522 13,312,179
26 P106,060,371  P304.11 0.706

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on a 15 to0 30 day credit
term,

Receivables from PAGCOR include billings for output value added tax (VAT)
outstanding as at December 31, 2014. The corresponding output VAT payable from the
billings to PAGCOR is likewise not remitied to the BIR due to the pending case, prior to

the final decision of the Supreme Court (SC) ordered in 2015, as discussed below (see
Note 13).

Under Revenue Regulation 16-2005 “Consolidated Value Added Tax Law™ which ook
effect on November 1, 2005, it was legislated that PAGCOR is subject to the VAT of
12%. Management believes that this law has a prospective application and therefore the
previously recorded VAT on transactions with PAGCOR (prior to November 1, 2005)
would have to be reversed when the position from the BIR is secured.

In the middle of 2008, the Company received from the BIR a Final Decision on Disputed
Assessment finding the Company liable for deficiency VAT with respect to the years
1996 to 2002 in total amount of P228.94 million, inclusive of penalty and interest from
January 2003 to December 2006, The Company subsequently filed a petition for review

with the Court of Tax Appeal (“CTA"™) to contest such Final Decision on Disputed
Assessment.

The BIR further issued a Warrant of Distraint and/or Levy and Warrant of Gamishment
against the Company and its assets, On September 12, 2008, the Company filed a surety
bond with the CTA, and the CTA issued a Temporary Restraining Order enjoining the
BIR from further efforts at collection of taxes, particularly the implementation of the
Warrant of Distraint and/or Levy and the Warrant of Gamishment.

In 2009, the Company moved to have a preliminary hearing conducted to first resolve the
legal issue of whether or not the services rendered by the Company to PAGCOR is
subject to VAT at 10% rate. The CTA granted the motion and hearings were
subsequently conducted. On February 18, 2011, the CTA ruled in favor of the Company
and cancelled the VAT deficiency assessment in toto,
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As mentioned in the CTA Resolution, in line with the decision of the SC in Philippine
Amusement and Gaming Corporation (PAGCOR) vs. The BIR, et al., the CTA. in its
decision dated February 18, 2011, cancelled the BIR’s assessment against the Company
for deficiency VAT in the amount of P228.94 million for taxable years 1996 to 2002, In
its resolution dated May 17, 2011, the CTA denied the Commissioner of the BIR's
Motion for Reconsideration of the CTA's decision rendered on February 18, 2011,
According to the CTA, considering that the assessment against the Company for
deficiency VAT was cancelled, the CTA deemed it proper that the surety bond posted by
the Company be discharged. The BIR shortly filed an appeal with the CTA En Banc.

On September 1, 2011, the CTA En Banc resolved to give course to BIR's appeal. The
Company filed its Memorandum in October 2011. On Ju ly 27, 2012, the CTA En Bane
resolved that consistent with the pronouncement of the SC in the cases of BIR vs. Acesite
Hotel Corporation and PAGCOR vs, BIR, that services rendered to PAGCOR are exempt

from VAT, BIR's petition has no leg to stand on and must necessarily fall. The BIR filed
a Motion for Reconsideration,

On October 8, 2012, the CTA En Banc resolved that BIR's Motion for Reconsideration is
denied and the earlier decision of the CTA promulgated on May 17, 2011 is affirmed. On
December 5, 2012, the BIR filed with the SC a Petition for Review,

On May 6, 2013, the Company filed its Comment/Opposition to the Petition for Review
and is awaiting feedback from the SC. On October 17, 2013, the Company reccived a
Notice from the SC directing the BIR 1o file a reply within 10 days from receipt of
Nolice,

On October 8, 2014, the SC declared the BIR Manifestation and Motion dated April 11,
2014 as unsatisfactory compliance with the Resolution dated January 28, 2013, The SC
directed the BIR to comply with the Resolution by submitting within five days from
notice the required documents,

On December 16, 2014, the Company filed a Manifestation and Motion to Dismiss the
Petition by the BIR for non-compliance with the jurisdictional requirements.

On June 9, 2015, the Company received a Notice from the Court of the First Division of
the SC stating that on February 11, 2015, the First Division of the SC resalved to note the
Company’s Manifestation and grant the Company's Motion to Dismiss the
Commissioner of Internal Revenue's (“CIR™) Petition for Review on Certiorari
(“Petition) of the Tax Case for failure of the CIR to comply with the resolutions issued
by the SC, which required the CIR to submit a verified statement of material date and the
duplicate original or certified true copies of the assailed CTA decision and resolution.
The Notice also stated that the Tax Case is considered closed and terminated,

On June 24, 2015, the BIR filed a Motion for Reconsideration with the SC even though
the SC has previously ruled that the case is considered closed and terminated.

On November 13, 2015, the Company received a Notice from the SC denying the Motion
for Reconsideration of the BIR and ruled it with finality in favor of the Company.

With the termination of the case, the Company reversed the VAT receivable from
PAGCOR amounting to P216,419,467 and the related Output VAT payable amounting to
P203,802,362. The difference of P12,617,105 between the amounts reversed was
recognized as part of “Administrative Expenses” (see Note 17).
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The Company’s exposure to credit risks and impairment losses related to irade
receivables from charge customers are disclosed in Note 26.

g

6. Inventories

This account consists of:

Note 2015 2014
Food P4,798,446 P4 801,467
Geeneral supplies 3,766,389 5.057,137
Engineering supplies 2,421,115 2,673,754
Beverage and obacco 1,031,622 960,322
Others 323,220 500,549

15 P12,340,792 P13,993,229

There was no write down of inventories to NRV in 2015 and 2014.
38

7. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

This account consists of:

2015 2014
Input value-added tax P5,579,291 P6,726,359
Prepaid expenses 5,512,517 4,703,774
Prepaid income tax 2,150,645 -
Others 832.280 800,505

P14,074,733 P12,230.638

Input value-added tax is current and can be applied against output vat.

Prepaid expenses consist of insurance premiums, dues and subscriptions fees.

8. Investment in an Associate

Investment in an associate pertains to the 40% ownership in Harbour Land Corporation
(HLC), a Philippine corporation engaged in the real estate business (see Note 14).

This account consists of:

2015 2014

Acquisition cost 48,200,000 P48,200,000
Accumulated share in net carnings;

Balance at beginning of year 2,041,237 267138

Equity in net income of associate during the year 2,372,464 1,774,099

Balance at end of year 4,413,701 2,041,237

P52,613,701 P50.241,237

i@



A summary of the financial information of HLC follows:

2015 2014

Current assets P33,537,899 P29,132.252
Noncurrent asset 121,900,300 121,830,382
Current liabilities (583,813) (1,377,625)
Noncurrent liability (78,000,000)  (78,011.590)
Net liabilities {100%) (P76,854,386) (P71,573,419)
Company’s share of net liabilities (40%) P30,741,754 P28,629,368
Revenue P17,797,608 P17,797,608
Net income (loss)/total comprehensive income _

(loss) (100%) P5,931,160 P4,435.249
Company’s share in net income (loss)/total

comprehensive income (loss) (40%) P2,372 464 P1,774.099

9. Loan Receivable

This pertains to the loan granted to Rogo Realty Corporation (RRC), a company under
common control, which is collateralized by RRC’s investment in shares of stock of HL.C
with a carrying value of P72.3 million as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 and is
collectible on demand with interest rate of 5% per annum (see Note 14),

Interest income earned in 2015, 2014 and 2013 amounted to P775,000 for each year.

10. Property and Equipment

The movements and balances in this account are as follows:

Bullding und Furniture
Building Fixtures and  Transp on L hold
Impravements uipment Eguipment  Improvemenis Total

Cost
Balance, Jamuary 1. 2014 P9GA.522 612 P373.000,252 P4,1 58,198 PIB3A5T  P13T4.256.129
Additions 12,151.5980 1.734.553 - 158R6.£33
Balance, December 31, 2014 1.008.774.602 176,824 $05 4,158,198 185,157 1390, 142,762
Additions 6,017.027 967,674 - - HUR5.301
Disposals (1,669.735) (7911.963) - (9.581.69%)
Reclessifi 362,500 (562.500) = -
Balance, December 31, 21115 1.013.684.994 369 318,016 4,158,198 JBS,157 1, 387.546,365
Accuniulated Depreclation

and Amortization
Balance, January |, 2014 410,261 464 J1LRIL086 4,158,108 385,157 126,615,905
Depreciation and am ortization

during the year 24137529 14 626,668 - - 3B H6d 19T
Balance, December 3], 2014 434 498 993 126,437,754 4158196 383,157 768,450,102
Depreciation and amortization

duting the year 25806986 13,651,885 - IDA5HET]
Disprosals (502.958) (T211.963) = {B414.551)
Reclassifieation 27,168 (27.188) - - -
Balance, December 31, 1015 459,930,179 32,150,488 4158108 IRE.157 796,624,022
Carrying Amount
December 31,2014 P574.275,609 P50.387.051 - F - PE24.662,660
December 31, 2015 P553,754,815 137,167,528 P - P - P590,912,34)




In 2015, the Company disposed bulding equipment resulting to loss on disposal
amounting to P1,166,747.

No impairment loss was recognized for the Company’s property and equipment in 20| 5
2014 and 2013.

11, Other Noncurrent Assets

This account consists of:

Note 2015 2014
Lease deposit 14, 20, 26 P78,000,000 P78.000.000
Miscellaneous investments and deposits 8,781,609 5,085,791
Others 1,010,000 1,010,000

P87,791,609 PR4,095,791

Miscellaneous investments and deposits consist of utility and rent deposit.

12. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

This account consists of:

Nate 2015 2014
Trade P37,016,672 P42.252.080
Accrued payroll 23,904,260 19,420,513
Accrued other liabilities 16,556,306 10,897,798
Accrued utilities 4,916,912 4,533,109
Others 705,166 815,762

26 P83,099,316 P77.919,262

The Company’s exposure to liquidity risk related to trade and other payables is discussed
in Note 26.

In 2014, the Company reversed its accrual of payable to CDL Hotel (Phils.) C orporation
(CDL), a related party, until March 2011 due to the latter’s liquidation amounting 1o
P14.767,900. The accrual pertains to the management and incentive fees arising from
management contract with CDL.

Trade payables have normal terms of 30 to 45 days.
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13. Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

Note 2015 2014
Deposits for utilities P4,789,028 P4,983,868
Payable to government agencies 4,618,637 5,820,142
Payable to employses 26 3,616,015 0,949,840
Output VAT payable 5 3,331,455 206,953,990
Rewards redemption payable 1,018,117 1,181,381
Others 20 454,688 1,872,492

P17,827,940  P230,761,713

Output VAT payable includes output tax charged to PAGCOR amounting (o
P203,802,362 as at December 31, 2014 which was closed against the related VAT
receivable in 2015 as discussed in Note 5.

14. Related Party Transactions

In the normal course of business, the Company has transactions with its related parties.
These transactions and account balances as at December 31 follow:

Outstanding Balance

Amount Due from Due to
Category/ of the Relnted Related
_Mlﬁn__uwm_ Parties Parties Terms Cunditiony
Amociate
* Lease deposi 015 20 F- 8,000,000 r- Required lease  Colectible upon
deposit on the  termination of
leased lnnd the contract
0|4 - TR, 000,000 - Reguired lease  Callectible upon
deposivon (he temmination of
lenved lapd the contraci
2113 - TR 00,000 - Required lease  Collectinle upon
deposit on the temmination of
leased land the contract
* lnlerest income 015 14b, 20 3.900,000 - -
2014 3,900,000 - ~
mi3 3800.000 6,125.2%0 - 5% per annum Uneecured
of the lease
deposit
= Advenices 2018 144 221 - =
ni4 24,550 5o - Due and Unsecured; no
demandable, impainmen
non inferest
hearing
2013 135037 135,037 - Due and Ursceured; no
demandable, impairment
nen interest
hearing
* Rent expense 2015 1720 17,797,608 - -
2014 17,797 608 -
13 10678 560 -
® Renl incorme 2018 Ie, 20 180,000 - %
204 40000 96,300 - e and Unsecured
femandable;
nom interest
hearing
Forward
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Amount Die from Due to
Category/ of the I Related
Transaction Year Note  Trmnsaction Partles Terms Conditions
Under Common
Conirol
® Momagemeont and 2048 4417 P20.762,185 F - Fo,236.002  Dueand Unsecured
ingentive fees demandable;
non interest
bearing
2014 20E16244 - 4684895 Due and Unsecured
demandahle;
non interest
bearing
2013 25010591 - 1424181 Dise and Unsecured
demandable;
non ierest
beating
= Advances s 14a RA0793 50 561528 Doennd Unsecured; no
demandahle: impairment
nen Interest
bearing
2014 1233015 - 1405 348 Dhue and Unsecured; no
demandable;, Impaimment
non interest
beating
2013 1376171 1,750,063 91,340 Dueand Unsecured; no
demandable, AN
non interest
benring
= Loen 2018 9 e - 15500000 - Due and Unsecured: no
demandable: impairment
Imterest
hearing
2014 - 15,500,000 - Due and Unseeured, na
demandable; impairment
interest
bearing
2013 - 15,500,000 - Due and Unsecured; no
demaridable; Impairment
Interesi
bearing
® Interest income 1S Me 75,000 11,000,000 - 5% perannum  Unsecured
of the luan
recelvahle
4014 TT5.N00 11,000,000 . $% perannum  Unsecured
of the lonn
reccivable
213 775,000 11386249 - 3% perannum  Unsecured
of the loan
recewvable
* Rent meome s I4e 420.000 - -
Hila 200.000 160,200 - Due and Unsecured
demandable,
oA inleres
bearing
Key Management
Personnel of the
Entity
* Short term s Hr 17,699,951 b ¥
employee 2004 19,301,720 - =
henelits 013 16,291,747 - -
TOTAL 015 104,500,050 F6, 798,190
TOTAL 014 104,737,130 FoO%.24)
IOTAL i P 2A%,639 PZ.11542|
Due from related parties is included in the following accounts:
Note 2015 2014
Receivables - net 5 P11,000,000 P11.256,800
Loan receivable 9 15,500,000 15,500,000
Due from related partics 50 350
Other noncurrent assets 11, 20 78,000,000 78.000.0000

P104,500,050  P104,757.150
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2. In the normal course of business, the Company grants/obtains advances to/from

related parties for working capital purposes. These advances are non-interest bearing,
unsecured and receivable/payable on demand,

b. The interest receivable from HLC » &N associate, represents the uncollected interest on
the lease deposit of the Company to HLC at 5% a year (see Note 20). The related

interest income amounted to P3.9 million annually for the three-year period ended
December 31, 2015, '

c. The interest receivable from RRC, an entity under common control, represents the
uncollected interest on the loan granted by the Company to RRC at 5% a year
(see Note 9). The related interest income amounted to PO.78 million annually for the
three-year period ended December 31, 2015,

d. The Company has a Managemeni Agreement with Elite Hotel Management Services
Pte. Ltd - Philippine Branch (Elite), an entity under control, under which the latter
provides management, technical and administrative services. In retum, the Company
pays monthly basic management and incentive fees based on a percentage of the

hotel’s revenue (2%) and gross operating profit (7%), respectively, starting
April 2011,

e. The rent income from HLC, RRC and Elite represents the sub-lease portion of an
office space consisting of 30 Square meters, 25 square meters and 65 squarc melers,
respectively, located at the Hotel. The lease covers a period of 2.5 years until
December 31, 2016, renewable upon written agreement of both parties,

f. Transactions with Key Management Personnel

The total remuneration of key management personnel in the form of short-term
employee benefits is shown below:

2015 2014 2013
Directors of hotel operations P2.291,685 P2,732,760 P31,671.418
Executive officers 15,408,266 16,568,960 15.622.329

P17,699,951 P19,301,720 P19.293,747

The Company does not provide post-employment and equity-hased compensation
benefits to its Board of Directors and Expatriates.

15. Cost of Sales and Services

This account consists of:

Note 2015 2014 2013

Inventories at beginning
of year ) P13,993,229 P13,582 447 P14.560,701
Purchases 52,854,755 56,696,788 58,771,715
Available for sale and use 66,847,984 70,279,235 73,332,416

[nventories at end of year 6 (12,340,792) (13,993,229) (13,582,447)
P54,507,192 P56,286,006 P39,749.969
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16. Selling Expenses

This account consists of:

Note 2015 2014 2013
Salaries, wages and
employee benefits: 2l
Food and beverage P31,099 865 P32,252,688 P34,125,259
Rooms 29,815,663 30,393,903 29,707,598
Other operating
departments 1,265,462 1,285,659 1,272,489
62,180,990 63,932,250 65,105,346
Property operation,
maintenance, energy
and conservation 80,483,496 98,794,538 103,083,894
Guest supplics 9,779,840 9,602,307 9,984,630
Commission 8,049,420 8,423,737 6,231,033
Transport charges 6,302,642 6,490,719 6,931,548
Laundry and dry cleaning 5,331,439 5,097,076 5.186,222
Online selling and
marketing tools 3,442,052 3,346,056 635,118
Printing and stationery 1,929,781 2,105,58] 2,358,083
Kitchen fuel 1,716,756 2,652,540 2.841 429
Housekeeping expense -
night cleaning 1,436,580 1,539,193 1,344,239
Operating supplies 1,263,205 1,028,138 1,186,414
Music and entertainment 1,086,648 1,078,670 1,003,012
Cleaning supplics 643,835 644,809 775,512
Permits and licenses 513,452 606,050 350,633
Miscellaneous 8,333,318 6,287,010 7,516,897

P192,493,454  P211,628674  D214,534,010
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17. Administrative Expenses

This account consists of:

Note 2015 2014 2013
[Motel overhead
departments
Salaries, wages and
employee benefits: 21
Administrative and
general P33,525,853 P35.637,618 P35,176,442
Engineering 9,711,386 12,792,037 8,727,296
Sales and marketing 7,885,728 7,972,648 7.837.115
Human resources 2,234,627 1,423,807 2,743 667
53,357,594 57,826,110 54,504,520
Management and
incentive fees 14 20,762,185 20,816,244 25,020,591
Credit card commission 5,632,812 6,265,220 5918815
Dues and subscription 4,644,950 3,893,774 3,071,583
Data processing 2,254,199 2,166,924 2,438,617
Telecommunications 1,036,083 1,174,547 2,070,823
Advertising 1,044,046 790,253 1,240,189
Entertainment 751,766 905,428 867.063
Awards and social
activities 572,725 702,428 686,714
Miscellaneous 3,026,379 2,861,583 4,162,326
93,082,739 97,402,511 99,981,241
Corporate office
Depreciation and
amortization 10 39,558,871 38,864,197 36,293,759
Leased land rental 14, 20 17,797,608 17,797,608 10,678,560
Professional fees 14,357,245 6,977,782 7,446,688
Write-off of receivables 5, 13 12,617,105 - -
Corporate office payroll
and related expense 11,471,410 7,409,803 3,584,995
Property tax 9,265,681 9,265,761 9,265,681
Insurance 8,976,761 9,071,572 12,620,164
Office supplies 1,023,143 972205 1,033 836
Taxes and licenses 543,516 12,227976 8.680,760
Transportation and travel 520,706 704,986 131,533
Directors’
fees/allowances 398,708 1,311,151 1,494,626
Provision for impairment
losses on receivables 26 94,343 13,156,558 27.260
Utility charges # - 7,464,596
Miscellaneous 2,641,564 1,973,529 824,600
119.266,661 119,733,128 99,547,067
P212,349,400 P217,135,639 P199,528.308
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18. Earnings per Share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Weighted average number of
common shares:
Balance at beginning of year P53,717.369 P54,702,219 P57,551,552
Weighted average number of
shares acquired during the year - (539,141) (1,560,672)
P53,717,369 P54,163,078 P55,990,880
2015 2014 2013
Net income for the year P5,772,079 P303,898 PB5,576.676
Divided by weighted average
number of outstanding shares 53,717,369 54,163,078 55,990,880
PO.11 P01 P1.53
There are no potential dilutive cormmon shares in the years presented,
19. Refundable Deposits
This account consists of:
Note 2015 2014
PAGCOR 20 P25,349.438 P25349.438
Others 5,396,673 30,770,381
30,746,111 56,119,819
Less: Current portion 25,349 438 49,346,738
P5,396,673 P6,773,081

The refundable deposit pertains to the deposit paid by the lessee to (he Company as

required in the lease agreement,

In October 2014, the Company had a potential tenant on the space previously rented by
PAGCOR. 1t paid the lease deposit amounting to P23.99 million upon signing the

Memorandum of Agreement.

In 2015, PAGCOR did not grant the potential tenant a license to operate a casino. The
potential tenant refunded the lease deposit amounting to P19.53 million and the
remaining balance of P4.46 million, inclusive 12% VAT, was forfeited by the Company

and was recognized as “Other income” in profit or loss.
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20. Leases

Company as Lessor

The Company lcases certain portions of the Hotel premises to third partics with options
for extension/renewal upon mutual agreement of the parties. The leases include
provisions for rental increment of 5% upon renewal of the contracts subject to
renegoliations of both partics,

The lease agreements with the third parties required the latter to give the Company lease
deposits which amounted to a total of P30,746,111 and P56,119.819 as at December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively, and are shown as part of “Refundable deposits™ in the
statements of financial position. Rent income amounted to P2,847,052 and P2,209.159 in

2015 and 2014, respectively, and is shown as “Others" under Revenue in the statements
of profit or loss.

On March 31, 2011, the Company and PAGCOR, agreed to amend and include
additional spaces in the Contract of Lease. The amended lease contract is binding until
July 10, 2013.

On February 15, 2012, the BOD of PAGCOR has decided not to renew the contract of
lease which ended on July 10, 2013, Refundable deposit from PAGCOR is not yet
returned to the latter pending reconciliation of account between both parties.

Company as Lessee

The Company leases the land occupied by the Hotel from HLC, its associate, for a period
of 25 years up to January 1, 2015. On August 1,2004, the Company, as lessee, and HLC :
as lessor, agreed (0 amend the Contract of Lease with Option to Purchase executed by the

parties on November 12, 199] covering the lease of the land. The amended contract
provides for the following:

a.  Annual rental on the land of P10,678,560;

b. Required lease deposit (shown as part of “Other noncurrent assets” in the statements
of financial position) of P78 million; and

[}

Interest rate of 5% per annum on the lease deposit which the lessor is obligated 1o
pay to the Company.

On August 11, 2014, the Company and HLC agreed to amend the lease contract to
increase the fee from P10,678,560 to P17,797.608 starting January 1, 2014 and 1o extend
the lease contract from 2015 1w 2040 for a period of another 25 years with no escalation

of fee for the first 5 years but on the 6" year, HLC will propose a revision depending on
market condition,

The rent expense on the land amounted to P17.80 million, P17.80 million and P10.68
million shown as part of leased rental under “Administrative expenses” account in 2015,
2014 and 2013, respectively (see Note 17).
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Future minimum rental obligations on the land are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Due within one year P17,797.608 P17.797,608 P10,678,560
After one year but not more than
five years 88,988,040 88,988,040 -
More than 5 years 320,356,944 338,154,552 ~

P427,142,592  P444,940,200 P10.678.560

21. Retirement Cost

The Company has an unfunded, noncontributory, defined benefit retirement plan
covering substantially all of its employees, except for its Board of Directors and
Expatriates, It provides a retirement benefit equal to eighty-six (86%) of monthly salary
per year of services payable to an employee who retires at age of 60 with at least 5 years
in service. Annual cost is determined using the projected unit credit method, The
Company’s latest valuation date is December 3 1,2015.

The recognized liability representing the present value of the defined benefit obligation
presented as “Accrued retirement benefits liability” in the Company’s statements of
financial position amounted to P25,489,767 and P26,634,668 as at December 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively,

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2018 2014
Balance at January | P26,634,668 P21,914,777
Included in Profit or Loss
Current service cost 1,796,360 1.988,063
Interest cost 1,358,368 964,250
3,154,728 2952313
Included in Other Comprehensive Income (ocn
Remeasurements loss (gain):
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
Financial assumptions 1,266,784 (1.144,185)
Experience adjustment (5,166,107) 3,128,766
(3,899,323) 1,984,58 |
Others
Benefits paid (400,306) (217,003)
Balance at December 31 P25,489,767 P26,634,668

The amounts of retirement benefits cost which are included in “Salaries, wages and

employee benefits” under operating expenses in the statements of profit or loss for the
years ended December 31 are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Current service cost P1,796.360 P1,988,063 P1,442,564
Interest cost 1,358,368 964,250 1,382,280
Retirement benefits cost P3,154,728 P2952.313 P2.824, 844
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The actuarial gains. before deferred income taxes, recognized under “Other

comprehensive income™ in the statements of comprehensive income and statements of
changes in equity are as follows:

2015 2014 2013

Cumulative actuarial gain ar the

beginning of the year P6,708,626 P8.693,207 P10,163,191
Actuarial gain (loss) arising

from:

Financial assumptions (1,266,784) 1,144,185 (3.501,119)

Experience adjustment 5,166,107 (3.128.766) 2,031,135
Cumulative actuarial gain at the

end of the year P10,607,949 P6.708,626 P8,693,207

The net accumulated actuarial gains, net of deferred tax amounted to P7,425,564,
P4,696,038 and P6,085,245 as at December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, as
presented in the statements of changes in equity.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

2015 2014 2013
Discount rate 5% 5% 5%
Future salary increases 3% 3% 3%

Assumptions regarding future morality have been based on published statistics and
mortality rates of the 1985 Unisex Annuity table.

Sensitivity Analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial

assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
abligation by the amounts shown below:

Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (1,266,784) 1,366,605
Future salary increase rate (1% movement) 1,311,605 (1.228,356)

Although the analysis does not take into account the full distribution of cash flows

expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumption shown.

The defined benefit plan exposes the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk,
interest rate risk, and market (investment) risk.

The weighted-average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 12 years as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014,

The maturity analysis of the benefit payments is as follows;

015
5 Years but
Carrying  Contractual Less than Less than More than
Amount Cash Flows 5 Years 10 Years 10 Years
Retirement benefits
liability P25,489,767  P93,358,992  P6.899,779 PB.229.568  P78,229,645
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The Company is not required to
Retirement Fund before th
contributions to the Retire

pre-fund the future defined benefits payvable under the
ey become due. For this reason, the amount and timing of
ment Fund are at the Company’s discretion. However. in the

cvent a benefit claim arises, the Company will be liable to pay its employees.

22, Income Tax

The components of the Compan ¥'s income tax expense are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Current tax expense P4,358,744 P9,802,073 P34,405,405
Deferred tax expense (benefit) 2,269,530 (6,230,909) 3,798,738
P6,628,274 P3,571,164 P38,204,143

The reconciliation of the income tax expense computed at statutory income tax rate to the
income tax expense shown in profit or loss is as follows:

2015 2014 2013
Income before income tax P12,400,353 P3,965,062 P123,780.819
Income tax expense at statutory
tax rate (30%) P3,720,106 P1,189,519 P37,134,246
Additions to (reductions in)
income tax resulling from the
tax effects of:
Income subjected to final tax (172,724) (200,878) (735,120)
Equity in net income of an
associate (711,739) (532,230) (183,312)
Non deductible expense 3,792,631 3,114,753 1,988,329
P6,628,274 P3,571,164 P38,204,143

The components of the Company’s deferred tax assets (liabilities) are as follows:

December 31

Net  Recognized Deferred Deferred
Balance at in Profit Recogniced Tax Tax
2018 January 1 or Loss in OC1  Net Balance Assets Liabilities
Accrued retirement
benelis liability P10,002,988 PR26,327 P PI0829.315 F10.819.315 P -
Allowance for
impairment losses
on receivables 3,993,654 28,303 - 4021957 4,021,957
Unrealized foreign
exchangz loss (gain) 414085 (3,124,160 = 2,710,07%) (2,710,075)
Actuarial gain on
defined benefit plan (2.012,588) - (1,169,797) (3,182,389) - (3.1K2 3RS)
Net tax pssels and
liabilities FI2398.139 (P1.260.530) (P1,169,797) P8958.812 P14.851,272 (P5.892.460)
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December 31

Net  Recognized Deferred Deferred
Balance at in Profit  Recognized Tax Tax

1014 January 1 or Loss in O Net Balance Assels Liabiliti
Accrued retirement

benefits liability P9,182,395 P820,593 P - PLOOG298R  P10,002,985 P -
Allowance for

impairment losses )

on receivables 46,686 3,946,968 - 1,993 654 1,993 654
Unrealized foreign

exchange loss (gain) (1.049,263) 1,463,348 = 414,085 414,085
Actuarial gain on

d benefit plan (2,607,962) - 505,374 (2,012,588) - 12.012,588)

MNet tax assets and

liabilities P5.571.856 P6.230,009 P595,374  P12,398,139 P14,410,727  (P2,012,588)

23. Appropriation of Retained Earnings

The Company has appropriated the amounts of nil, P49.242.500 and P142.466,650 in

2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, to finance the acquisition of treasury stock during
those years.

24. Share Capital

a. Capital Stock

2015 2014
Authorized - 115,000,000 shares at 10 par
value shares
Issued 87,318,270 87,318.270
Less treasury stock (33,600,901) (33,600.901)
Total issued and outstanding 53,717,369 53,717.369

b.  Treasury Stock

The movements of treasury stock as at December 31 are as follows:

2015 2014 2013

Balance at beginning of year 33,600,901 32,616,051 29,766,718
Acquisition of treasury stock

during the year - 984,850 2,849,133

33,600,901 33,600,901 32,616,051

25. Reclassification of Accounts

Refundable deposit amounting to P25,349,438 made by PAGCOR was reclassified from

noncurrent to current liability in the 2014 financial statements to conform with the 2015
presentation.



26. Financial Risk and Capital Management Objectives and Policies

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit Risk
® Liquidity Risk
*  Market Risk

This note presents information about the Company's exposure 10 each of the above risks.
the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks, and
the Company’s management of capital.

The main purpose of the Company's dealings in financial instruments is to fund its
operations and capital expenditures,

The BOD has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework. The BOD, through the Executive Committee,
is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies.
The committee identifies all issues affecting the operations of the Company and reports
regularly to the BOD on its activitics,

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the
risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems arc reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. All risks
faced by the Company are incorporated in the annual operating budget. Mitigating
strategies and procedures are also devised to address the risks that inevitably occur so as
not to affect the Company’s operations and detriment forecasted results. The Company,
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims (o develop a

disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their
roles and obligations,

The Company's Audit Commitiee assists the BOD in fulfilling its oversight
responsibility of the Company’s corporate governance process relating to the: a) quality
and integrity of the Company's financial stalements and financial reporting process and
the Company’s systems of internal accounting and financial controls; b) performance of
the internal auditors; ¢) annual independent audit of the Company’s financial statements,
the engagement of the independent auditors and the evaluation of the independent
auditors’ qualifications, independence and performance; d) compliance by the Company
with legal and regulatory requirements, including the Company’s disclosure control and
procedures; e) evaluation of management's process to assess and manage the Company’s
enterprise risk issues; and f) fulfillment of the other responsibilitics set out by the BOD.

The Audit Committee also prepares the reports required to be included in the Company's
annual report.

Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the risk of loss the Company would incur if credit customers and

counterparties fail to perform their contractual obligations. The Company’s credit risk
arises principally from the Company’s trade receivables,
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Exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit checks are being
performed on all clients requesting credit over certain amounts. Credit is not extended
beyond authorized limits, established where appropriate through consultation with a
professional credit vetting organization. Credit granted is subject to regular review, to
ensure it remains consistent with the clients’ current credit worthiness and appropriate te
the anticipated volume of business.

The investment of the Company’s cash resources is managed so as to minimize risk while
seeking to enhance yield. The Company's holding of cash and money market placements
exposes the Company to credit risk of the counterparty if the counterparty is unwilling or
unable to fulfill its obligations and the Company consequently suffers financial loss,
Credit risk management involves entering into financial transactions only with
counterparties with acceptable credit rating, The treasury policy sets aggrepate credit
limits of any one counterparty and management annually reviews the exposure limits and
credit ratings of the counterparties.

Receivable balance is being monitored on a regular basis to ensure timely execution of
necessary intervention efforts.

The carrying amount of financial assets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 represents the
maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting dates is
as follows:

Note 2015 2014

Cash and cash equivalents
(excluding cash on hand) 4 P238,561,649 P236,282.563
Receivables - net 5, M4 106,060,371 304.110.706
Loan receivable 9, 14 15,500,000 15,500,000
Due from related partics 14 50 350
Lease deposit 11 78,000,000 78,000,000

P438,122,070  P633.893.619

Details of trade receivables from charge customers as al December 31, 2015 and 2014 by
type of customer are as follows:

Note 2015 2014
Airlines P11,124.817 P7.310.132
PAGCOR 8,936,199 8,936,199
Embassy and Govemnment 8,282,208 2,913,503
Corporations 4,669,473 5,216.038
Travel agencies 4,045,471 3,380,789
Credit cards 2,682,713 4,158,078
Others 7.417,088 4,524,871

5 47,157,969 36.448.610
Less allowance for impairment losses on

trade receivables - charge customers 5 789,417 387,679
P46,368,552 P36,060,931

The Company's most significant customer, Airlines, accounts for 24% and 20% of the
trade receivables from charge customers as at December 31, 2015 and 201 4, respectively.



The aging of trade receivables from charge customers as at December 31, 2015 and 2014
is as follows:

2015 2014
Gross Gross
Amount _ Impairment Amount  Impairment
Current P20,830,706 P - P17,083,679 P=
Over 30 days 7,508,776 - 7.006,072 -
Qver 60 days 3,772,458 - 2,908,643 -
Over 90 days 15,046,028 789,417 9.450.216 387,679

P47,157,969 P789,417 P36,448,610 P387.679

Receivables from PAGCOR amounting to P8,936,199 included in over 90 days are still
collectible based on management's assessment of collection history, thus, no allowance
for impairment was provided. In addition, any amount outstanding from PAGCOR can
be offset against the deposit received from it as discussed in Note 20,

The movements in the allowance for impairment losses in respect of trade receivables
during the year are as follows:

Note Amount
Balance at January 1, 2014 P155,621
Provision in 2014 1 13,156,558
Balance at December 31, 2014 5 13,312,179
Provision in 2015 17 94,343
Balance at December 31, 2015 5 P13,406,522

The allowance for impairment losses on trade receivables as of December 31, 2015 and
2014 of P13.406,522 and P13,312,179, respectively, relatcs to outstanding accounts of

customers that are more than 90 days past due and portion of receivable from PAGCOR
account,

The table below shows the credit quality of the Company’s financial assets based on their
historical experience with the corresponding debtors.

As at December 31, 2015

Grade A Grade B Grade C Tortal

Cash in banks and
cash equivalents P238.561,649 r - P - P238,561.649
Receivables - net 76,414,143 9,407,190 20,239,038 106.060371
Loan receivable - 15,500,000 - 15,500,000
Due from related parties 50 - - 50
Lease deposit 78,000,000 - - 78,000,000

P392.975 842 P24,907,190 P20,239,038  P438,122,070

As at December 31, 2014

Grade A Grade B Grade C Total

Cash in banks and
cash equivalents P236,2R2 563 P - P - P236,282,563
Receivables - net 36,388,353 35,140,204 232,582,149 304,110,706
Loan receivable - 15,500,000 - 15,500,000
Due from related parties 350 - - 350
Lease deposit 78,000,000 - - 78,000,000

P350,671.266 P50,640,204  P232,582,149  P633.893.619
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Grade A receivables pertain to those receivables from customers that always pay on time
or even before the maturity date. Grade B includes receivables that are collected on their
due dates provided that they were reminded or followed up by the Company, Those
receivables which are collected consistently beyond their due dates and require persistent
effort from the Company are included under Grade C.

Cash in banks is considered good quality (Grade A) as this pertains 1o deposits in
reputable banks.

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity tisk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Company manages liquidity risk by forecasting
projected cash flows and maintaining a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility in operations. Treasury controls and procedures are in place 10 ensure that
sufficient cash is maintained to cover daily operational and working capital requirements,
Management closely monitors the Company’s future and contingent obligations and sets
up required cash reserves as necessary in accordance with intemnal requirements,

The Company’s total current labilities as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted to
P133,074,884 and P365,920,433, respectively, which are less than its total current assels
of P387,159,095 and P582,912,986, respectively. Thus, the Company has sufficient funds
ta pay for its current liabilities and has minimal liquidity risk.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates,
interest rates and other market prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is 10 manage

and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

The Company is subject to various market risks, including risks from changes in room
rates, interest rates and currency exchange rates,

Room Rates

The risk from room rate changes relates to the Company's ability to recover higher
operating costs through price increases to customers, which may be limited due to the
competitive pricing environment that exists in the Philippine hotel industry and the
willingness of customers to avail of hotel rooms at higher prices.

The Company minimizes its exposure to risks in changes in room rates by signing
contracts with short period of expiry so this gives the Company the flexibility to adjust its

room rates in accordance to market conditions. Also, there are minimal changes in room
rates in the hotel industry,

Interest Rate Risk

The Company has no interest-bearing debt obligations to third parties and its receivables
are subject (o fixed interest rates. As such, the Company has minimal interest rate risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Company is mainly exposed to foreign currency risk on its cash and cash equivalent
that are a denominated in a currency other than the Company’s functional currency. The
currencics giving risc to (his risk are primarily the Philippine peso (PHP) and United
States (US) dollar. The Company ensures that ils exposure is kept to an acceptable level

by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary 1o address short-
term imbalances.

L



Fair Values
The fair values together with the carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities
shown in the statements of financial position are as follows:

2018 2014
Carrying Carrying

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents P239,183,149 P239,183,149 P237.078.063 P237.078.063

Receivables - nel 106,060,371 106,060,371 304,110,706 304,110,706

Loan receivable 15,500,000 15,500,000 15,500,000 15,500,000

Due from related parties 50 50 150 is0

Lease deposit 78,000,000 78,000,000 78.000.000 78,000,000
Accounts payable and accrued

expenses 83,000.316 83,099,316 77,919,262 77,919,262

Due to related parties 6,798,190 6,798,190 6,090,243 6,090.243

Refundable deposits 30,746,111 30,746,111 56,119,819 56,119,819

Other current liabilities* 12,232,261 12,232,261 20,752,217 20,752,217

*Excluding payables to government

Estimation of Fair Values

The following summarizes the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the
fair values of financial instruments reflected in the table:

Cash

The fair value of cash approximates its carrying amount due to the short-term nature of
this asset.

Receivables/Due from Related Parties/Loan Receivable/Accounts Payable and Accrued
Expenses(Due to Related Parties/Other Current Liabilities Except for Output VAT
Liability and Withholding Taxes Payables, and Deferred Rental

Current receivables are reported at their net realizable values, at total amounts less

allowances for estimated uncollectible accounts. Current liabilities are stated at amounts

reasonably expected to be paid within the next twelve months or within the C ompany's
operating cycle. Due to/from related parties and loan receivable are payable on demand.

Short-term Investments/Other Noncurrent Assets

Short-term investments and other noncurrent assets are interest bearing. The carrying
value of short-term investments approximates its fair value, because the cffective interes!
rate used for discounting the short-term investment and other noncurrent assels
approximates the current market rate of interest for similar transactions.

apital M ement
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to increase the value of
sharcholders’ investment and maintain high growth by applying free cash flow 1o
selective investments. The Company sets strategies with the objective of establishing a
versatile and resourceful financial management and capital structure.

The Chief Financial Officer has overall responsibility for monitoring of capital in
proportion to risk. Profiles for capital ratios are set in the light of changes in the
Company's extemal environment and the risks underlying the Company's business
operations and industry.
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The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity ratio which is calculated
as total debt divided by total equity. Total debt is equivalent to accounts payable and
accrued expenses, income tax payable, due to related parties, other current Habilities,
refundable deposits and accrued retirement benefits liability. Total equity comprises
mainly of the capital stock, additional paid-in capital and retained earnings.

There were no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the
year.

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company is compliant with the minimum public
float requirement by the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).

The Company has 115,000,000 shares registered with the SEC as at December 31, 2015
and 2014. As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company issue/offer price is P17.80
and P25, respectively, hased on the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) website. The total
number of shareholders is 506 as at December 31,2015 and 2014,

27, Contingencies

The Company, in the ordinary course of business, is a party to certain assessment, claims
and litigation. The outcome of these assessments, claims and litigation cannot be
presently determined. In the opinion of management and the Company's legal counsel,
the eventual liability arising from these assessments, claims and litigation, if any, will not
have a material effect on the Company's financial position or results of operations.

28. Supplementary Information Required by Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)

In addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRSs, and such other standards and/or
conventions as may be adopted, companies are required by the BIR to provide in the
notes to the financial statements, certain supplementary information for the taxable year.
The amounts relating to such information may not necessarily be the same with those
amounts disclosed in the financial statements which were prepared in accordance with

PFRSs. The following is the tax information required for the taxable year ended
December 31, 2015:

1. Based on RR No, 15-2010

A. Value Added Tax (VAT)

1. Output VAT P52,953,358
Account title used:
Basis of the Output VAT:
Vatable sales P441,277,985
Exempt sales 7,330,630
Zero rated sales 2,729,944
P451,338,559
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2. Input VAT
Beginning of the year P6,726,359
Current year's domestic purchases:
a. Goods for resale/manufacture or further

processing 5.914,870

b. Services lodged under other accounts 19,690,099
Less: Applied input VAT during the year 26,752,037
Balance at the end of the year P5,579,291

B. Withholding Taxes

Tax on compensation and benefits P19,710,537
Creditable withholding taxes 8,087,422
Final withholding taxes 50,000

27,847,959

C. All Other Taxes (Local and National)

Other taxes paid during the year recognized under
“Taxes and licenses” account under Operating

Expenses

Real estate raxes P9,265,681
License and permit fees 514,952
Others 542,016

P10312.649

D. Deficiency Tax Assessments

Period Covered Amount*
2001 P765.104
2008 262,576,825

P263,341,929

*Amount of basic deficiency tax assessments, whether protested or not.

E. Tax Cases

As at December 31, 2015, the Company has the following tax cases:

a. 2001 - Settled basic tax due of P403,130 on March 2010, as agreed on the
Letter of Abatement filed. Request to waive the interest and surcharges of
P346,140 is still for approval at BIR LTS.

b. 2008 - The Company filed a petition for review with the CTA on February
20, 2015 to invalidate the collection proceedings of the BIR.
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GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

SCHEDULE OF RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED EARNINGS

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

Items

Amaount

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, beginning

P100,841,052

Adjustments:
(see adjustments in previous year’s Reconciliation)

(44,391,792)

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted, beginning

Net Income based on the face of AFS
Less: Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax
Equity in net income of associate/joint venture
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net (except those
attributable to Cash and Cash Equivalents)
Unrealized actuarial gain
Fair value adjustment (M2M gains)
Fair value adjustment of Investment Property resulting to
gain Adjustment due to deviation from PF RS/GAAP-gain
Fair value adjustment of Investment Property resulting to
gain Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP-gain
Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained
eamings as a result of certain transactions accounted for
under the PFRS
Recognized deferred tax assets
Add: Non-actual losses
Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax)
Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP - loss
Loss on fair value adjustment of investment property (afier tax)

56,449,260
5,772,079

(2,372,464)

(2,269,530)

Net Income Actual/Realized

Add (Less) :
Dividend declarations during the period
Appropriations of Retained Eamings during the period
Reversals of appropriations
Effects of prior period adjustments
Treasury shares

1,130,085

1,130,085

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted, ending

P57,579,345
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Amendments fo PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12:
Consolidaled Finonclal Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure of Inlerests In Other
Entilles: Transilion Guidance
Amendments fo PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27 (2011):
Investment Enfilies
Amendments to PFRS 10 and FAS 28: Sale or
Conlribulion of Assels belween an Investor andils
Associate or Joint Venlure
Amendrnents fo PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Investment Entities: Applying Ihe Consolidation
Exception

PFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12
Consolidated Financial Statements, Jaint

Arrangements and Disclosure of Interests in Other
Enlilies: Transition Guidance

Amendments fo PFRS 11: Accounling for Acquisitions
of Inferests in Joint Operalions
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Disclosure of Interests In Other Enlilies
Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 11, and PFRS 12:
Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint
Arangemenis and Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance
Amendments fo PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27 {2011):
Investmeni Enfllies
Amendments lo PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:
Investment Enifies: Applying Ihe Consolidalion
Exception

PFRS 13 Fair Value Measuremen
Annual Improvements o PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
Measurement of shorl-lerm receivables and
payables
Annual Improvemnents fo PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle:
Scope of porifolio exception

PFRS 14 Regulatory Delerral Accounls

Philippine Accounling Standards

PAS 1 Presentation of Financial Siatements

{Asiian) Amendment 1o PAS |: Coplial Disclosures
Amendmenls fo PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puliable Finaneial
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendmens fo PAS 1: Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income
Annual Improvements fo PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
Presentalion al Financial Statements - Comparafive
Information bayond Minimum Reguirements
Annual Improvements fo PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
Presentation of the Opening Stalement of Financial
Position and Relaled Notes
Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Inifialive

PAS 2 Inventories

FAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

PAS B Accounling Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Erors

PAS 10 Evenls afler the Reporfing Period

PAS 11 Conslruction Contracts

PAS 12 Income Taxes

Amendment fo PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets
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PAS 14 Fioperty, Plant and Equipment v

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle: v -

Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of
Servicing Equiprment

Annual Improverments fo PFRSs 2010 - 201 2Cycle: v
Restatement ol accumulated deprecialion
(amortizotion) on revaluclion {Amendments to
PAS 16 and PAS 38)

Amendmenls fo PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarificalion of v
Acceptable Methods of Deprecioiion and
Amorlizalion

Amendments |o PAS 16 and PAS 41: Agriculiure: v
Bearer Plants

PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue v

PAS 19 Employee Benafits
(Amended)

Amendments fo PAS 19; Defined Benefit Plans; v
Employee Conlributions

Annual Improvemnents to PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle: v
Discount rate In a regional markel shaiing the same
currency - e.g. the Furozone

PAS 20 Accounling for Government Granls and Disclosure of
Governmeni Assistance

PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rales v
Amendment: Net Invesiment in a Foreign Operation v

PAS 23 Borrowing Cosis
(Revised)

PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures v
(Revised)

Annual Improvements lo PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle: v
Definition of ‘related party’

PAS 24 Accounting and Reporfing by Refirement Benelit v
Plans

PAS 27 Separate financial Slaternents
(Amended)

Amendmenls to PFRS 10, PFRS 12, and PAS 27 (2011); v
Invesiment Enfifies

Amendments o PAS 27: Equily Method in Separate v
Financial Statemeanls

PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Venlures v

s e omemarerey PFRS 10 and PAS 26: Sale or
Contiibution of Assels between an Investor and its
Associale or Joinl Venlure

Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 28:

Invesimenl Enlities; Applying the Consolidalion
Exceplion

PAS 29 Financlal Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies




Amendmenls 1o PAS 32 and PAS 1: Pytiable Financial
Insiruments and Obligalions Arising on Liquidation

Amendment lo PAS 32: Classificalion of Rights Issues

Amendments fo PAS 32: Olfselling Financial Assets
and Financiol Liabiifies

Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
Financial Instruments Presentalion - Incomne Tox
Consequences of Disilbulions

PAS 33

Eamings per Share

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

Annual Improvemenls to PFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle:
Inlerim financiol Reporfing - Segment Assels and
Liabilities

Annual Improvements lo PFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle:
Disclosure of Informalion “elsewhere in the interim
financial report'

PAS 34

Impaimenl of Assets

Amendmenls fo PAS 34: Recoverable Amount
Disclosutes for Non-Financial Assefs

PAS 37

Provislons, Conlingen! Liabiiities and Contingent
Assels

PAS 38

Intangible Assefs

Annual Improvements 1o PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle:
Restalement of cccumulated deprecialion
(omortization) on revoluation (Amendmenis o
PAS 16 and PAS 38)

Amendments 1o PAS 16 and PAS 38: Clarification of
Acceplable Methods of Depreciafion and
Amorlization

PAS 39

Financial Instruments: Recognilion and Measurement

Amendments 1o PAS 39; Transition and Initial

Recognition of Financlal Asse!s and Financlal
Liobiffies

Amendments 1o PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge
Accounting of Forecas! Infragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendmenls lo PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarontee Conlracts

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7 Reclassificalion
of Financial Assets

Amendments fo PAS 39 and PFRS 7 Reclassification
of Financial Assels - Effeclive Date and Transition

Amendments 1o Philippine Interpretalion IFRIC-? and
PAS 39: Embedded Derivalives

Amendment lo PAS 39; Eligible Hedged llemns

Amendment fo PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and
Conlinuation of Hedge Accounting
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PAS 40 Invesiment Property v
Annual Improvements lo PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle: v
Inter-relotionship of PFRS 3 and PAS 40 (Amendmen|
1o PAS 40)

PAS a1 Agricullure v
Amendments fo PAS 14 and PAS 41: Agricullure: v
Bearer Plants

Phillppine Interpretalions

IFRIC § Changes In Existing Decommissioning, Restoralion v
and Similar Liablifies

IFRIC 2 Members' Share in Co-operalive Enlifies and Similar v
Instruments

IFRIC 4 Determining Whelther an Amangement Conlains o v
Lease

IFRIC § Rights 1o Interesls arising from Decommissioning, v
Restoration and Environmenial Rehabilitation Funds

IFRIC ¢ Liabiifies arising from Parlicipaling in a Specific v
Marke1 - Waste Blecticol and Electronic Equipment

IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 v
Financial Reporling in Hyperinfiationary Economies

IFRIC 9 Reossessmenl of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments lo Philippine Inferpretation IFRIC-9 and v
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporling and Impairmeni v

IFRIC 12 Service Concaession Arrangements

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyally Programmes v

IFRIC 14 PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Assel,
Minimum Funding Requlrements and thelr Interaclion
Amendments to Philppine Interprelations IFRIC- 14, v
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

IFRIC 146 Hedges of a Net Investmen in a Foreign Operation v

IFRIC 17 Diskributions of Non-cash Assefs to Owners v

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v

IFRIC 19 Exlinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity v
Insliuments

IFRIC 20 Siripping Cosis in the Production Phase of o Surfoce v
Mine

IFRIC 21 Levies v

sic-7 Infroduction of the Euro

sic-10 Govermment Assislance - No Specific Relalion to v
Operaling Aclivities

SIC-15 Operaling Leases - Incentives v

SiC-25 Incomea Taxes - Changes in Ihe Tax Status of an Entity v
or ils Shareholders

Sic-27 Evalualing the Substance of Transactions Involving v

. the Legal form of @ Lease
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Sic-2¢ Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures.
SIC-31 Revenue - Barler lronsactions Involving Advertising
Services
Sic-32 Intangible Assels - Web Site Costs
Philippine Interpretations Commitee Questions and Answers
PIC QaA PAS 18, Appendiy, paragraph 9 - Revenue
2006-01 recognition for sales of property unils under pre-
complelion confracts
PIC Q&A PAS 27.10(d) - Clarilicalion of criteria for exermplion
2004-02 from presenling consolidated financial statements
PiC QaA PAS 1.103(a - Basls of preparation of financial
2007-01- slatements if an entily has not opplied PFRSs in ull
Revised
PIC Q&A PAS 20.24.37 and PAS 39.43 - Accounting for
2007-02 goveinment loans with low interest rates [see PIC
Q&A No. 2008-02)
PIC Q&A PAS 40.27 - Valuation ol bark recl and other
2007-03 properfies acquired [ROPA)
PIC QaA PAS 101.7 - Applicalion of eriteria for o qualilying
2007-04 NPAE
PIC QaA FAS 19.78 - Rale used In discounting posi- v
2008-01- employment benefit obligations
Revised
PIC Qaa PAS 20.43 - Accounling for government loans with
2008-02 low inlares rates under 1he amendments o PAS 20
PIC Q&A Framework.23 and PAS 1.23 - Financial statements
2009-01 prepared on a basis other than going concem
FIC QaA PAS 39.AG71-72 - Rate used in delermining ihe fair
2009-02 value of government securilies in the Fhilppines
PIC QaA PAS 39.AG71-72 - Rale used in delermining lhe fair
2010-01 value of government securiies in the Philippines
PIC Q&A PAS 1R.16 - Basis of preparation of financial v
2010-02 slatements
PIC Q&A FAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statermnents -
2010-03 Current/non-cuntent clossilication of a callable term
loan
PIC Q2A PAS 1.10(f) - Requirements for o Third Statement of
2011-01 Financlal Position
PIC QrA PFRS 3.2 - Common Control Business Combinalions
2011-02
PIC Q&A Accounling for Inter-company Loans v
2011-03
PIC QaA PAS 32.37-38 - Casls of Public Offering of Shares
2011-04
PIC Qaa PFRS 1.D1-D8 - Fair Value or Revaluation as Deemed
2011-08 Cosl
PIC QeA PFRS 3, Business Combinalions (2008}, and PAS 4D,
2011-08

Investment Property - Acquisilion of Investmeni
properlies - asset acquisition or business
combinotion?




P

2012.00 Method for Business Combinations of Enfilies Under
Commen Control in Consofidated Financlal
Statements

PIC QaA Cost of a New Building Consfrucled on the Site ofa

2012.02 Frevious Building

PIC Q&A Applicabiiity of SMEIG Findl Q&As on the Application

2013-01 of IFRS for SMEs o Phillppine SMEs

PIC Q&A Conlorming Changes 1o PIC Q&As - Cycle 2013

201302

PIC Q&A PAS 19 - Accounting for Employee Benefits under a

2013-03 Defined Conlribution Pian subject fo Requirements of

(Revised) | Republic Act (RA) 7441, The Philppine Refirement

Low




The Group Structure

The Philippine Fund Limited Group Structure

The Philippine Fund Limited
60% Bermuda

As at 31 December 2015



Annex “C”
MANAGEMENT REPORT

BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

General

The Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission on 9 August
1989 primarily to own, lease or manage one or more hotels, inns or resorts, all adjuncts and

accessories thereto and all other tourist oriented businesses as may be necessary in
connection therewith.

The Company owns The Heritage Hotel Manila, a deluxe class hotel which offers 467 rooms
and deluxe facilities such as restaurants, ballrooms, and a casino.

The hotel opened on 2 August 1994 and the Company has continued to own and operate the
hotel since then,

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2015, the Company reported a net profit after tax of
about PhP5.772 million as against PhP0.393 million in 2014 and PhP85 million in 2013.

There is no bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings involving the Company. There
are no material reclassifications, mergers, and consolidation involving the Company, nor

purchases or sales of a significant amount of assets not in the ordinary course of business of
the Company.

The Company’s main source of income is revenue from the hotel operations. The market for
the hotel services varied. The bulk of the room guests are corporate clients from various
countries. The majority of the room guests are Americans, Japanese, Koreans, Filipinos and
guests from Southeast Asian nations, while food and beverage guests are mainly Filipinos.

Competitive Position

The main competitors of The Heritage Hotel Manila are Sofitel Philippine Plaza Manila,

Hotel Jen Manila, Pan Pacific Manila, Diamond Hotel Philippines, New World Manila Bay
Manila and Microtel Inn & Suites (Mall of Asia),

Based on information made available to us, our Heritage Hotel occupancy was 59.6% versus
competitor’s occupancy of 68%. Our Average Room Rate was PhP3,215 while competitor
rate was PhP4,928. The resultant Revenue Per Available Room ("RevPAR") of our Hotel was

PhP1,917 versus competitor of PhP3.349.

Raw Materials and Services

The hotel purchases its raw material for food and beverage (“F&B") from both local and

foreign suppliers. The top 3 suppliers for raw materials are Agathon Trading, Yulick Food
Corporation and Distribution and Charles Seafood Supply Branch.
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Dependence on Single Customer

The Company’s main source of income is revenue from the operations of the Heritage Hotel.
The operations of the hotel are not dependent on a single or a few customers.

Related Party Transactions

The Company in the normal course of business has entered into transactions with its related
parties, principally consisting of cash advances. These advances are shown as “Due to related
company”, “Due to immediate holding company”, and “Due to intermediate holding
company” in the balance sheets.

The Company also leases its hotel site from a related company. The lease contract on the
hotel site requires the Company to deposit PhP78 million to answer for any and all unpaid
obligations that the Company may have under said contract.

On 11 August 2014, the Company and the related company, Harbour Land Corp (HLC),
agreed to amend the Lecase Contract to increase the rent from PhP10,678,560 to
PhP17,797,608 effective 1 January 2014 and to extend the lease contract from 2015 to 2040
for a period of another 25 years with no escalation of rent for the first 5 years but on the 6"
year, HLC will propose a revision depending on the market condition.

The Company has entered into a Management Contract with Elite Hotel Management
Services Pte. Ltd."s Philippines Branch for the latter to act as the hotel's administrator, Under
the terms of the agreement, the Company is required to pay monthly basic management and
incentive fees based on a certain percentage of revenue and gross operating profit.

Policy on Related Party Transactions

Section 5.2 of the Company’s Revised Manual on Corporate Governance requires all material
information to be publicly and timely disclosed through the appropriate mechanisms of the
PSE and submitted to the SEC. Such information includes, among others, related party
transactions. All such information should be disclosed.

In compliance with the Amended Implementing Rules and Regulations of the Securities

Regulation Code (“SRC Rules”), the Company must disclose the following details for a
related party contract:

a. the nature of the related party relationship;

b. the type of transaction (e.g. supply or services contract, loans, guarantees);

c. the total amounts payable and receivable in the transaction from or to the related
party;

d. the elements of the transaction necessary to understand the listed company's financial
statements.

The Company must also disclose its transactions in which related persons, such as directors,
officers, substantial shareholders or any of their immediate families have a direct material
interest, such as the related person’s beneficial ownership of the counterparty or share in the
profits, bonus, or commissions out of the transaction.
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No disclosure is needed for any transaction where:

a. The transaction involves services at rates or charges fixed by law or governmental
authority;
b. The transaction involves services as a bank depository of funds, transfer agent,

registrar, trustee under a trust indenture, or similar services:

c. The amount involved in the transaction or a series of similar transactions has an
aggregate value of less than PhP2,500,000; or

d. The interest of the person arises solely from the ownership of securities of the
registrant and the person receives no extra or special benefit that was not shared
equally (pro rata) by all holders of securities of the class.

In compliance with the provisions of the Corporation Code, a contract of the Company with
one or more of its directors or officers must be ratified by the vote of the stockholders

representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock if any of the following
conditions are absent:

a. The presence of such director in the board meeting in which the contract was
approved was not necessary to constitute a quorum for such meetin £

b. The vote of such director was not necessary for the approval of the contract.

Full disclosure of the adverse interest of the directors or officers involved must be made

at the stockholders' meeting and the contract must be fair and reasonable under the
circumstances.

Furthermore, the Company must comply with the provision of the Corporation Code which
requires a contract between two or more corporations having interlocking directors, where (i)
the interest of the interlocking director in one corporation is substantial and his interest in the
other corporation is merely nominal, and (ii) any of the following conditions are absent:

a. The presence of such director in the board meeting in which the contract was
approved was not necessary to constitute a quorum for such meeting.

b. The vote of such director was not necessary for the approval of the contract.

to be ratified by the vote of the stockholders representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the
outstanding capital stock of the corporation where the interlocking director’s interest is
nominal.  Similarly, full disclosure of the adverse interest of the interlocking
director/s involved must be made at the stockholders' meeting and the contract must be fair
and reasonable under the circumstances. Stockholdings exceeding twenty (20%) percent of

the outstanding capital stock shall be considered substantial for purposes of interlocking
directors.

Patents, Trademarks, Etc.

3l



The Company registered the tradename “The Heritage Hotel Manila” with the Intellectual
Property Office on 12 July 2000 under registration number 41995105127. Under current

laws, the registration is valid for a term of 20 years, or up to 12 July 2020. The registration is
renewable for another 10 years.

The Company is also authorized to use “The Heritage Hotel Manila” as its business name
under its Articles of Incorporation.

The Company does not hold any other patent, trademark, copyright, license, franchise,
concession or royalty agreement.

Government Approval and Regulation

The hotel applies for Department of Tourism (“DOT”) accreditation annually. The
accreditation is based on the 2012 Rules and Regulations to Govern the Accreditation of
Accommodation Establishments of the DOT. The DOT inspects the hotel to determine

whether the hotel meets the criteria of the DOT. The DOT accredited the hotel and the
Company for the year 2015.

The Company is not aware of any new government regulation that may have a material
impact on the operations of the Company during the fiscal year covered by this report.

Development Activities

The Company did not undertake any development activities during the last three fiscal ycars.

Number of Employees

The hotel employed a total of 331 employees for the year ended 31 December 2015, Out of
the 331 employees, 190 are regular employees and 141 are casual employees,

The number of employees per type of employment is, as follows:

REGULAR | CASUAL | TOTAL
Hotel Operating Staff (All operating dept) 128 102 230
Management/Admin/Security (A&G Dept) 29 29 58
Sales & Marketing 13 1 14
Repairs & Maintenance 20 9 29
Total 190 141 331

Barring any unforeseen circumstance, for the year 2016, the Company will maintain more or
less the same number of employees as in year 2015.

There are no existing collective bargaining agreements between the Company and its
employees.

Risks



The Company has exposure to various risks, including liquidity risk, credit risk and market
risk. For discussions of these risks, see Note 25 — Financial Risks and Capital Management
to the accompanying audited financial statements in Item 7.

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Market for Company’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The common shares of the Company are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange.

The following are the high and low share prices of the Company for the first quarter of 2014,
and for the years 2013 and 2012 (Amount in Philippine Peso):

HIGH LOW HIGH LOW HIGH LOW

2016 2016 2015 2015 2014 2014
First Quarter 35.25 17.8 29.95 24 45 45
Sccond Quarter 45.9 17.02 70 38
Third Quarter 19.8 17.04 51.5 41
Fourth Quarter 21.5 16.9 35.5 25

The last recorded trade of the shares of the Company during the fiscal year covered by this
report occurred on 31 March 2016. The share price was PhP28.45.

Top Twenty (20) Stockholders

The top twenty (20) stockholders of record of the Company as of 31 March 2016 are as
follows:

NAME OF SHAREHOLDER NO. OF SHARES % OF
SHAREHOLDING
(INCLUSIVE OF
TREASURY
SHARES)
|| Grand Plaza Hotel Corp — Treasury stocks 33,600,901 38.48%
2 | The Philippine Fund Limited 28,655,932 32.82%
3 | Zatrio Pte Ltd 17,727,149 20.30%
4 | PCD Nominee Filipino 5,728,031 6.99%
5 | PCD Nominee Non-Filipino 231,323 0.26%
6 | Alexander Sy Wong 34,505 0.04%
7_| Yam Kit Seng 7,000 <0.01%
8 | Phoon Lin Mui 7,000 <0.01%
9| Yam Kum Cheong 7,000 <0.01% |
10 [ Yam Poh Choo 7,000 <0.01%
11 | Lucas M. Nunag 4,713 <0.01%
12 | Natividad Kwan 3,983 <0.01%
13 | Yam Kit Sung 2,998 <0.01%
14 | Peter Kan 2,443 <0.01%
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15 | Romeo L. Salonga 2,400 <0.01%
16 | Herbert Gochan Uy 2,310 <0.01%
17 | Christopher Lim 2,239 <0.01%
18 | Herbert Gochan Uy 2,117 <0.01%
19 [ Pepito Ong Ngo 2,091 <0.01%
20 | Janet Uy Te 2,016 <0.01%

Total 86,033,151 98.52%

The Company holds 33,600,901 shares as Treasury Stock, which comprises 38.48% of the
Company’s outstanding capital stock (inclusive of Treasury Stock).

Dividends

No dividends were declared for FY2015 and FY2014,

Except for the restrictions provided by law (e.g., the availability of unrestricted retained
earnings), there are no restrictions that limit the payment of dividends on the common shares.

Dividend Policy

The nature of the dividend, the dividend payment date and the amount of the dividend are
determined and approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities

There were no recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities of the Company. All of the
outstanding common shares of the Company are registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to the Revised Securities Act (now Securities Regulation Code).

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations

Top 5 Key Performance Indicators of the Company for the last 3 years:

2015 2014 2013
Current ratio 2.90 1.84 1.88
(Solvency ratio)
Debt/Equity 0.17 041 0.35
Assets/Equity 1.17 1.41 1.36
Profit before tax 2.7% 0.8% 21.24%
margin ratio
EBITDA 27.56 million 20.76 million 146.4 million
(Earnings before
interest, tax,
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depreciation &
amortization)

Note.: The Company has no loans due to third party or related parties.

Current ratio is derived by dividing the current assets with the current liabilities. This
indicator measures the liquidity of the Company in the short-term. The current ratio has
improved during the year of review mainly due lower current liabilities. Current liabilities

decreased mainly due to the adjustment of the accruals for VAT in which the Company won
the tax case at the Supreme Court.

Debt to equity ratio measures a company's financial leverage. It is derived by dividing total
liabilities over equity. This ratio decreased by 0.24 as a result of lower liabilities and slightly
higher equity. The reason for the lower liability is discussed earlier under current ratio.

Assets/Equity ratio measures the proportion of equity used to finance assets of the company
and it is derived by dividing total assets to equity. Total assets decreased versus same period

of last year mainly due to adjustment for Accounts Receivable VAT and also to lower fixed
assets.

Profit before tax margin ratio is computed by dividing the profit before tax against the total
revenue. This ratio measures whether the Company is able to contain its expenses in relation
to the revenue. This ratio improved this year versus 2014 due to the fact that the Company is
able to contain its expenses especially in energy cost. Without the rental income from the
former casino, however, the revenue is still under downward pressure,

EBITDA is a measure of the company profitability without interest, depreciation and, taxes.
This ratio has improved from PhP20.76 million to PhP27.56 million due to better cost
management even though revenue is down against prior year.

Management is not aware of:

a. Any known trends or any known demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that
will result in or that are reasonably likely to result in the Company's liquidity
increasing or decreasing in any material way. The Company is not having or
anticipate having within the next 12 months any cash flow or liquidity problems; and
the Company is not in default or breach of any note, loan, lease or other indebtedness
or financing arrangement requiring it to make payments. There is no significant

amount of the Company’s trade payables that have not been paid within the stated
trade terms.

b. Any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligations that is material
to the Company, including any default or novation of an obligation.
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All material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations),and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

There are no material commitments for capital expenditures.
Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonabl y

expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales or
revenues or income from continuing operations should be described.
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Please see below chart for the relationship between the Company and its ultimate parent
company.

The Gr C
The Philippine Fund Limited Group Structure
The Philippine Fund Limited
60% Bermuda
As at 31 December 2015,
Financial Conditions:

The total assets and liabilities of the Company for the last 3 years are as follows:

YEAR ASSETS - LIABILITIES -

PHP’000 PHP’000
2015 1,127,445 163,961
2014 1,354310 399,328
2013 1,363,125 357,905

2015 Financial Conditions

37



Total assets for the ycar decreased from PhP1.354 billion to PhP1.127 billion while total
liabilities from PhP0.399 million to PhP0.163 million. The main reason for the decrease in
assets and liabilities is due to reversal of accounts receivable and payables for VAT in respect

of Pagcor. As the Company has won the tax case in Supreme Court whereby Supreme Court
has ruled with finality, the Company reversed both accounts.

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents: This balance consists of cash and fixed deposits placed with

banks. Cash increased marginally by PhP2.1 million versus end of last fiscal year. The
lower cash generation is due to lower revenue.

Receivables net: This balance fell from PhP304 million to PhP106 million which is as

explained earlier due to reversal of accounts receivable VAT for Pagcor given the
Company has won the case at Supreme Court.

Inventories: Inventories fell by PhP1.6 million (11.8%) which is consistent with the
lower F&B and total revenue.

Prepaid expenses and other current assets: This balance consists of prepaid expenses
such as insurance premium. This balance increased by PhP1.84 million (15%) mainly
due to prepaid income tax amounting to PhP2.15 million.

Property and equipment-net: This balance dropped by PhP33.3 million (5.3%) as a result
of depreciation charges for the year net of addition to fixed assets.

Deferred tax assets — net: There is a decrease in this balance by PhP3.4 million (27.7%)

due to higher balance for impairment of receivables and unrealized foreign exchange
gain of PhP2.7 million this year.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses: The increase in this balance by PhP5.1 million

(6.6%) is due to higher accrued salaries and other liabilitics offset by lower accounts
payable due to lower revenue.

Refundable deposits (current liabilities) — This pertains to deposits from tenants and the
reduction in balance by PhP23.9 million (48%) is due to return of security deposit to a
potential tenant that did not materialized durin g the year.

Other current liabilities: There is a significant fall in this balance from PhP230.7 million
to PhP17.8 million and the reason is due to the reversal of accounts payable VAT Pagcor.

2014 Financial Conditions

Total assets for the year 2014 decreased marginally from PhP1.363 billion to PhP1.354
billion while total liabilities increased by PhP42 million (11%) due to higher liabilities such
as security deposits due to tenants and higher retirement benefits.

Assets:
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® Cash and cash equivalents: This balance consists of cash and fixed deposits placed with
banks. There is an increase of PhP31.2 million (15%) compared to the same period of
last year. Although the Hotel trading in 2014 is down significantly, the Company is still
cash flow positive. The increase is due to a new security deposit from a potential tenant

of PhP23 million and offset by the payment to shareholders in second half of 2014 for
share buyback exercise amounting to PhP49.2 million.

® Receivables net: This balance fell from PhP322 million to PhP304 million which is
consistent with the lower revenue of the Company.

® Due from related parties: There is a significant drop in this balance as the related
companies have settled their outstanding balance to the Company at year end.

® Prepaid expenses and other current assets: This mainly consists of prepaid input value
added tax, insurance premiums, dues and subscription. The drop is mainly in prepaid

income tax and input taxes given the reduced in revenue of the Company for this year
versus last year,

® Property and equipment net: There is a fall in this balance by PhP22.9 million (3.5%) as

a result of depreciation charges for the year offset by addition to fixed assets of PhP13
million.

® Investment in associate: Compared to the prior year, this balance increased by PhP1.7
million (3.6%) due to the improvement in the results of the associate and as such. the
company recognized a profit on the share in income of associate.

Deferred tax assets: This balance mainly pertains to deferred tax recognized for
retirement benefits, exchange gain/loss and impairment of receivables. There is an
increase of PhP6.8 million (122%) as there was a deferred tax on the impairment of
receivables, increase in retirement benefits and lower actuarial gain this year.

Liabilities and Equity:

® Due to related parties: Compared to last year, the balance has increased from PhP2.1
million to PhP6 million as Company has not settled its obligations with the related
companies. This will be settled in first quarter of 2015.

® Income tax payable: There is an income tax payable as at end of 2014 of PhP1.8 million

versus zero in 2013 even though Company has lower profit before tax as the Company
has higher non-tax deductible items this year.

® Refundable deposit: This balance consists mainly of deposits from customers and
tenants. Compared to last year, there is an increase of PhP26.9 million as there was a new
security deposit of PhP23 million from a potential tenant which is in the process of
negotiation with the Company.

® Accrued retirement benefits liability: The Company accrued for retirement benefits

liability in accordance to the actuarial valuation yearly. There is an increase in accrual
from PhP21.9 million to PhP26.6 million this year as in 2013, there was an experience
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adjustment of negative PhP2 million while the experience adjustment for 2014 was
lower.

Treasury stock: Compared to the same period of last year, this balance increased by
PhP49.2 million due to the share buyback exercise conducted during the year 2014.

2013 Financial Conditions

Total assets for the year 2013 decreased by PhP82 million (5%) relative to the same period of
last year. Total liabilities also decreased by PhP24 million (6%) versus last year same period.

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents: This balance consists of cash and fixed deposits placed with
banks. There is a decrease of PhP76 million (27%) compared to the same period of last
year. This is mainly due to payment of share buyback exercise amounting to PhP142
million in second half of 2013 and lower revenue.

Receivables net: This balance increased by PhP18 million over same period last year due
to increase receivables from a major tenant.

Prepayments and other current assets: The increase of PhP3.8 million over prior year is
due to increase in input value added tax and some prepaid expenses.

Property and equipment — net: This balance decreased by PhP23 million which is mainly
due to depreciation charges for the year.

Deferred tax assets: This balance decreased mainly due to lower balance for retirement
benefits.

Liabilities and Equity:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses: This balance dropped by PhP4.2 million
compared with prior year and this is mainly due to lower trade payables which is
consistent with the lower revenue.

Due to related parties: There is repayment to related parties at year end for outstanding

balances and as such, this balance dropped by PhP4.7 million compared to the same
period of last year.

Income tax payable: Due to lower profit and the Company has sufficient creditable
withholding tax, income tax payable is zero balance for last quarter.

Refundable deposits: This represents deposits given by tenants to the Company for lease
of space. There is a reduction of PhP2.1 million versus last year due to refund of certain
deposit 1o a tenant.

Accrued retirement liability: This balance represents accrual for retirement liability for
employees in accordance to the actuarial report by value. This balance decreased PhP1.5
million relative to same period of last year.
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® Treasury stock — There is an increase in treasury stock by PhP142 million versus last
year and this is a result of the share buyback in 2013,

Results of Operations:

Revenue and Net Income Afler Tax (“NIAT”) of the Company duri ng the last 3 years are as
follows:

YEAR REVENUE - NIAT -
PHP’000 PHP’000
2015 447,351 5,772
2014 466,947 393
2013 582,653 85,576

2015 Results of Operations

For the year 2015, the Company reported revenue of PhP447.3 million versus PhP466.9
million in 2014. The drop in revenue by PhP19.4 million (4.1%) compared to prior year is
mainly due to decrease in revenue in rooms, food and bevera ges (“F&B™) and other operating
departments.

Profit after tax recorded an improvement from PhP0.393 million in 2014 to PhP5.7 million in
2015 even though revenue has decreased and this is due to profit improvement plans
implemented by the Company.

Revenue:

Room occupancy fell from 62% (2014) to 59% (2015) while Average Room Rate (ARR) also
fell from PhP3,035 (2014) to PhP2.935 (2015). The net effect is a drop in RevPAR from
PhP1,881 to PhP1,732 or PhP149 (7.9%). The opening of more new hotels in Metro Manila
has an adverse impact on The Heritage Hotel Manila in terms of occupancy and ARR. In
order to compete for its share of market, the Hotel has to reduce ARR to capture business. In
addition, the closure of the casino in the middle of 2013 also has an impact on the occupancy
of the Hotel.

Food and Beverage (F&B) revenue registered a fall from PhP141 million to PhP137 million
or PhP4 million (10%). The negative variance is mainly due to the closure of PAGCOR
operated casino in the hotel in July 2013 and the increasing new restaurants around the hotel
affect the business. The hotel is able to increase its revenue for Banquet by PhP2.0 million
(4.8%) against prior year to offset the lower revenue from Riviera and Lobby Lounge.

Other operated departments consist mainly of telephone department, laundry and carparking.
There is a drop of PhP1.7 million (26%) from last year revenue and the bulk of decrease is

from telephone department. The lesser usage of hotel telephone services due to mobile phone
is affecting this department revenue.
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Others revenue consist mainly rental income and other miscellaneous income. This revenue
increased by PhP10.1 million (138%) versus last year due to the reversal of reserves from

service charge setup for operating equipment which is no longer required amounting to about
PhP9 million.

Cost of sales:

Cost of sales for F&B registered a fall by PhP2.4 million (4.6%) as a result of lower F&B
revenue. The decrease is consistent with the lower F&B revenue. Cost of sales for other
operated departments have increased by PhP0.68 million (23.6%) despite the fall in revenue
is because during the year, the Hotel provides more corporate guest with free wifi in order to

altract more corporate businesses. As such, there are more fixed charges of wifi to cost of
sales of telephone department,

Gross Profit:
Gross profit showed a drop by PhP17.8 million (4.3%) due to lower revenue.

Selling Expenses:

Selling expenses consist of property operation, maintenance, energy and conservation,
salaries, transport charges and commission. As compared to the prior year, there is a decrease
of PhP19.1 million (9%). Hotel is able to implement energy saving measures which helped
to save 17% energy cost versus 2014 and the Hotel also implemented various profit

improvement plans to reduce unnecessary costs. Hence even with lower business, the hotel is
able to maintain a lower overhead.

Administrative Expenses:
Administrative expenses mainly consist of management and incentive fees, salaries, credit

card commission and dues and subscription. There is an increase of PhP4.7 million (2.2%)
compared to last year.

Other income/(expenses):

There is an increase from PhP22.0 million to PhP24.3 million or 10.4%. The bulk of the
increase is from increase in interest income by PhP3.6 million as a result of interest earned
from the security deposit with Meralco and foreign exchange gain of PhP9.3 million versus
last year of PhP0.18 million. The foreign exchange gain is due to translation gain from the
United States and Singapore dollars fixed deposits. In 2015, there is also a recognition of a

forfeiture of security deposit amounting to about PhP4 million from a potential tenant which
did not materialize.

Income Tax Expense:
Income tax expense increased by PhP3.0 million due to higher profit before tax.

2014 Results of Operations

For the year 2014, the Company reported revenue of PhP466.9 million compared with
PhP582.6 million in 2013. Revenue recorded a fall of PhP115.7 million (19.8%) mainly due
to drop in rooms, food and beverage (“F&B™) and rental income as compared to 2013. Due to
the fall in revenue, profit after tax for 2014 was only PhP0.393 million versus PhP85.5
million. In terms of EBITDA (Earnings before income tax, depreciation and amortization) for
2014 was PhP20.7 million versus PhP145.1 million in 2013
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Revenue:

Rooms revenue decreased from PhP336 million to PhP312 million or PhP24 million (7%).
The main reason for the drop in room revenue is fall in occupancy from 66% to 62% while
Average Room Rate fell by 2% from PhP3,101 to PhP3,035. The newer hotels in the Bay
Arca such as Solaire and the Resort World Hotels pose competition to the hotel. In addition,

tor the full year 2014, the Company does not have PAGCOR which contribute certain room
nights to the hotel.

Food and Beverage (F&B) revenue registered a fall from PhP158 million to PhP141 million
or PhP17 million (10%). The negative variance is mainly due to the closure of PAGCOR
operated casino in the hotel in July 2013. The hotel is able to increase its revenue for Riviera
by PhP3.3 million against prior year to offset the lost of revenue from casino operation,

Others revenue consist mainly rental income and this segment fell by PhP73 million (90%)
due to the closure of PAGCOR operated casino in July 2013.

Cost of sales:

Total cost of sales dropped by PhP3.4 million (5%) which is consistent with the lower F&B
and other operated department revenue for the year.

Gross Profit:
Gross profit showed a drop by PhP112.2 million (21%) due to lower revenue.

Selling Expenses:

Selling expenses consist of property operation, maintenance, energy and conservation,
salaries, transport charges and commission. As compared to the prior year, there is a decrease
of PhP2.9 million (25%). Hotel is able to implement energy saving measures which helped

to save 4.7% energy cost versus 2013. Hence even with lower business, the hotel is able to
maintain a lower overhead.

Administrative Expenses:

Administrative expenses mainly consist of management and incentive fees, salaries, credit
card commission and dues and subscription. There is an increase of PhP17 million (8%)

compared to last year and part of the increase is higher sales and marketing expenses for the
year.

Other income/(expenses):
There is an increase from PhP14.9 million to PhP22.0 million or 47% as during the year
2014, the company reversed an accrual which is no longer required,

Income Tax Expense:
Income tax expense decreased by PhP34 million due to significantly lower profit before tax.

2013 Results of Operations

For the year 2013, the Company reported revenue of PhP582.6 million compared with
PhP687.3 million in year 2012. Revenue dropped by PhP104.7 million (15%) while profit
after tax decreased by PhP79.8 million (48%) versus prior year.
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Revenue:
Rooms revenue decreased from PhP353 million to PhP336 million or PhP17 million (4%).
The hotel managed to increase its occupancy from 64% to 66%, however, Average Room

Rate (ARR) was lowered from PhP3,317 to PhP3,101 in order to compete. There are more
new hotels in the market and the hotel has to reduce its ARR in order to attract guests.

Food and Beverage (F&B) revenue registered a fall from PhP183 million to PhP 158 million
or PhP25 million (13%). The negative variance is mainly due to the closure of PAGCOR
operated casino in the hotel in July 2013. The hotel is able to increase its revenue for Riviera

by PhP2 million against prior year and also banquet has increased its revenue by PhP2
million.

Other Operated Departments revenue decreased by PhP2.5 million (27%) from prior year

Others revenue consist mainly rental income and this segment fell by PhP60 million (42%)
due to the closure of PAGCOR operated casino in July 2013.

Cost of sales:

Total cost of sales dropped by PhP5.3 million (8%) which is consistent with the lower F&B
revenue for the year.

Gross Profit:
Gross profit showed a drop by PhP99.2 million (15%) due to lower revenue.,

Selling Expenses:
Selling expenses consist of property operation, maintenance, energy and conservation,
salaries, transport charges and commission. As compared to the prior year, there is a drop of

PhP3.4 million (1.6%). The decrease is mainly from lower headcount and as such, payroll
cost has reduced.

Administrative Expenses:

Administrative expenses mainly consist of management and incentive fees, salaries, credit
card commission and dues and subscription. There is an increase of PhP18 million (10%)
compared to last year and part of the increase is in payroll cost for sales and marketing as
hotel has managed to fill up some vacant positions this year.

Other income/(expenses):

There is an increase from PhP11.1 million to PhP14.9 million or 34% as there is an exchange
gain of PhP7 million in this year versus last year of PhP1.5 million.

Income Tax Expense:
Income tax expense decreased by PhP30.3 million or 44% due to lower profit for the year.

Net Income After Tax:

Net income after tax fell from PhP165 million to PhP85 million as a result of lower revenue
for the year.

PROSPECTS FOR YEAR 2016:



With the departure of PAGCOR as a tenant in July 2013, the Company lost a significant
portion of rental income and other hotel related revenue. Management has met and negotiated
with few potential tenants but so far, nothing has materialized yet. Without a stron g tenant to
replace PAGCOR, the profitability of the Company will be affected in 2016.

Risks

The Company has exposure to various risks, including liquidity risk, credit risk and market
risk. For discussions of these risks, see Note 25 — Financial Risks and Capital Management
to the Company's audited financial statements.

Financial Statements

The Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 are

attached hereto as Annex “B”, Please refer also to the accompanying notes to the audited
financial statements,

External Audit Fees and Services

The Company paid PhP670.600 and PhP670,000 for 2015 and 2014 respectively, each year,
for the audit of the Company's annual financial statements or services that are normally

provided by the independent auditor in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or
engagements for those fiscal years.

The Company has paid no other audit-related fees and other fees to its independent auditor in

the previous years. For the year 2015, the Company estimates to pay audit fees in the amount
of PhP680,000 to its independent auditor.

Audit Committee's approval policy and procedure for the external audit fees and
services

The Company’s Management presents the proposed audit fees for the year of review and the

previous year for deliberation by the Audit Committee before the Audit Committee approves
it.

Change in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure

There are no changes and/or disagreements with the accountants of the Company or of the

Hotel on any matter relating to accounting principles or practices, financial disclosures,
auditing scope and procedure,
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Upon written request of any sharcholder of record entitled to notice of and vote at the
meeting, the Company shall furnish such shareholder with a copy of the Company’s

Annual Report on SEC Form 17-A without charge. Any such written request shall be
addressed to:

GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION
10/F, The Heritage Hotel Manila
Roxas Boulevard cor. EDSA Extension
Pasay City

Attention:  Mr. Yam Kit Sung
General Manager and Chief Financial Officer
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SCHEDULES SUPPORTING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Marketable Securities
This is not applicable to the Company.

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and
PrincipalStockholders (Other than Affiliates)
No significant amount is involved. No separate schedule is attached.

Non-Current Marketable Equity Securities, Other Long Term Investments in
Stock, andOther Investments.

This is not applicable to the Company.

Indebtedness of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries And Affiliates
This is not applicable to the Company.

Property, Plant and Equipment
See Note 10 of the Financial Statements.

Accumulated Depreciation
See Note 10 of the Financial Statements.

Intangible Assets - Other Assets
This is not applicable to the Company.

Long Term Debt
This is not applicable to the Company.

Indebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties (Long Term loans from related
companies)

Attached is the Company’s Audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended 31
December 2015, 2014, and 2013 reflecting under Note 9 the loan advanced to Rogo
Realty Corporation (“RRC”) collateralized by RRC's investment in shares of stock
and Note 14 on Related Party Transactions.

Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
This is not applicable to the Company.

Capital Stock

Attached is the list of top 20 stockholders of the Company, comprising of 98.52% of
the Company's total shares outstanding as at 31 March 2016.

47



	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65
	Page 66
	Page 67
	Page 68
	Page 69
	Page 70
	Page 71
	Page 72
	Page 73
	Page 74
	Page 75
	Page 76
	Page 77
	Page 78
	Page 79
	Page 80
	Page 81
	Page 82
	Page 83
	Page 84
	Page 85
	Page 86
	Page 87
	Page 88
	Page 89
	Page 90
	Page 91
	Page 92
	Page 93
	Page 94
	Page 95
	Page 96
	Page 97
	Page 98
	Page 99
	Page 100
	Page 101
	Page 102
	Page 103
	Page 104
	Page 105
	Page 106
	Page 107
	Page 108
	Page 109
	Page 110
	Page 111
	Page 112
	Page 113
	Page 114
	Page 115
	Page 116
	Page 117

